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Christopher Wei
Y Bhg Dato’ Albert Yeoh Beow Tit
Y Bhg Dato’ Ooi Sang Kuang
Y Bhg Dato Koh Yaw Hui
Lee Kong Yip

Chief Executive Officer 
Ng Kok Kheng

Chief Operations Officer
Lee Pooi Hor

Chief Distribution Officer
Kevin Choong Wui Teck

Head, General Operations
Chong Kah Lay

Head, Finance & Administration
Khoo Sook Hooi

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MANAGEMENT TEAM

REGISTERED OFFICE

COMPANY SECRETARY

AUDITORS

Level 20, Menara Great Eastern
303 Jalan Ampang
50450 Kualal Lumpur, Malaysia

Liza Hanim Zainal Abidin

Messrs Ernst & Young

Notes:-

(1)  Dato’ Ooi Sang Kuang resigned as a Director from the Board on 31 December 2013.

(2)  Mrs Fang Ai Lian stepped down as the Chairman and Director of the Company on 16 April 2014.
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

1. Ng Kok Kheng

2. Lee Pooi Hor

3. Kevin Choong Wui Teck

4. Chong Kah Lay

5. Khoo Sook Hooi

Chief Executive Officer 

Chief Operations Officer

Chief Distribution Officer

Head, General Operations

Head, Finance & Administration
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BRANCH NETWORK06

HEAD OFFICE

PENANG

KUALA LUMPUR

IPOH

KLANG

KUANTAN

KOTA BHARU

KUCHING

SIBU

MELAKA

MEDAN TUANKU

JOHOR BAHRU

SEREMBAN

ALOR SETAR

KOTA KINABALU

Level 18, Menara Great Eastern
303, Jalan Ampang, 50450 Kuala Lumpur

Tel: (03) 4259 7888  |  Fax: (03) 4813 0088
Assistant Vice President: Chow Chien Keong

Suite 2-3, Level 2, Wisma Great Eastern
No. 25, Lebuh Light, 10200 Pulau Pinang
Tel: (04) 2619 361  |  Fax: (04) 2619 058

Assistant Vice President: Andrew Khoo Lay Keong

2nd Floor, Wisma Great Eastern
No. 16, Persiaran Tugu, Greentown Avenue 

30450 Ipoh, Perak
Tel: (05) 2536 649  |  Fax: (05) 2553 066

Assistant Vice President: Yong Kim Meng

3rd Floor, No. 10, Jalan Tiara 2A
Bandar Baru Klang, 41150 Klang, Selangor
Tel: (03) 3345 1027  |  Fax: (03) 3345 1029

Assistant Vice President: Linda Ho Yen Lai

1st Floor, No. 25, Jalan Dato’ Lim Hoe Lek
25200 Kuantan, Pahang

Tel: (09) 5162 849  |  Fax: (09) 5162 848
Manager: Kevin Koh Ah Seng

No. S25/5252-S, Tingkat 1
Jalan Sultan Yahya Petra 

15200 Kota Bharu, Kelantan
Tel: (09) 7482 698  |  Fax: (09) 7448 533

Manager: Oong Eau Hong

No. 51, Level 3, Wisma Great Eastern
Lot 435, Section 54 KTLD

Travilion Commercial Centre 
Jalan Padungan, 93100 Kuching, Sarawak
Tel: (082) 420 197  |  Fax: (082) 248 072

Manager: Richard Tan Tze Jian

2nd Floor, No. 10 A-F, Wisma Great Eastern
Persiaran Brooke

96000 Sibu, Sarawak
Tel: (084) 328 392  |  Fax: (084) 326 392

Manager: Helen Wong Mee Siong

17-21, Jalan Medan Tuanku Satu
Medan Tuanku

50300 Kuala Lumpur
Tel: (03) 2786 1000  |  Fax: (03) 2713 6001

Assistant Vice President: Yee Chee Loong

2-23, Jalan PM15 
Plaza Mahkota, 75000 Melaka

Tel: (06) 2843 297  |  Fax: (06) 2835 478
Assistant Vice President: Steven Tai Miow Chong

Manager: Choo Kwee Chin

Suite 13A-1, Level 13A, Menara Pelangi
Jalan Kuning, Taman Pelangi
80400 Johor Bahru, Johor

Tel: (07) 3348 988  |  Fax: (07) 3348 977
Assistant Vice President: Alex Tan Eh Ya

103-2, Jalan Yam Tuan
70000 Seremban, Negeri Sembilan

Tel: (06) 7649 082  |  Fax: (06) 7616 178
Manager: Choo Kheng Men

69 & 70, 1st Floor, Jalan Teluk Wanjah
05200 Alor Setar, Kedah

Tel: (04) 7346 515  |  Fax: (04) 7346 516
Manager: Lee Kok Heng

Suite 6.3, Level 6, Wisma Great Eastern Life
No. 65, Jalan Gaya, 88000 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah

Tel: (088) 235 636  |  Fax: (088) 248 879
Manager: Lim Chee Dean

Level 18, Menara Great Eastern, 303, Jalan Ampang, 50450 Kuala Lumpur
Tel: (03) 4259 7888  |  Fax: (03) 4813 2737  |  Customer Careline: (03) 4259 8900

E-Mail : enquiry@oac.com.my
Website: www.oac.com.my
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SERVICING OFFICE 07

Location Address

Batu Pahat

Kluang

Miri

Seberang Perai

Sandakan

Tawau

1st Floor, 109, Jalan Rahmat
83000 Batu Pahat, Johor
Tel: (07) 4322 357  |  Fax: (07) 4322 359

3rd Floor, No. 22 & 24, Jalan Md Lazim Saim
86000 Kluang, Johor
Tel: (07) 7711 086  |  Fax : (07) 7711 084

2nd Floor, No. 31, Jalan Todak 2, Pusat Bandar Seberang Jaya
13700 Seberang Jaya, Pulau Pinang
Tel: (04) 3981 268  |  Fax: (04) 3983 268

1st Floor, Lot 5 & 6, Block 40, Lorong Indah 15, Bandar Indah
Phase 7, Mile 4, North Road, 90000 Sandakan, Sabah
Tel: (089) 228 769  |  Fax: (089) 228 372

3rd Floor, Wisma Great Eastern
Jalan Billian, 91008 Tawau, Sabah
Tel: (089) 755 882  |  Fax: (089) 767 013

3rd Floor, Lots 1260 & 1261, Block 10 M.C.L.D.
Jalan Melayu, 98000 Miri, Sarawak
Tel: (085) 421 299  |  Fax: (085) 433 276
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS08

RM million

Gross Premium Income

Total Assets At Market Value:
  General Insurance
  Shareholders’ Fund

Underwriting Profit (before tax)
Operating Profit (after tax)

  2008        2009         2010        2011         2012        2013

223.26

191.28
190.28

19.26
29.91

263.89

526.56
87.40

29.13
27.93

329.07

728.58
89.97

42.67
53.68

ABOUT OVERSEAS ASSURANCE CORPORATION (MALAYSIA) BERHAD

Overseas Assurance Corporation (Malaysia) Berhad (‘OAC Malaysia) started operations in Kuala Lumpur 
in 1954 as a branch of the Overseas Assurance Corporation Limited, Singapore (‘OAC Singapore’). OAC 
Malaysia’s early focus was in general insurance but it expanded its life insurance business in 1963, making it 
one of the earliest composite insurers in Malaysia.

In 1998, the branch operations were restructured to become a locally incorporated subsidiary of OAC Singapore 
to comply with the requirements of the Malaysian Insurance Act 1996.

By 2000, OAC Malaysia was one of the largest providers of life, health and general insurance in Malaysia, serving 
a customer base of more than 500,000 policy owners with total assets exceeding RM2.5 billion. With the 
merger of OAC Singapore and Great Eastern Holdings Limited, Singapore in December 2000, OAC Malaysia’s 
life insurance business was transferred to Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad in September 2001. 
OAC Malaysia became a pure general insurance outfit to spearhead the Great Eastern Group’s development 
and expansion in the general insurance sector.

OAC Malaysia had officially acquired the general insurance business of Tahan Insurance Malaysia Berhad 
(‘Tahan’) with effect from 1 January 2011. Following the acquisition, Tahan’s entire general insurance business 
was transferred to OAC Malaysia. 

As at 31 December 2013, OAC Malaysia has total assets in excess of RM912 million with a paid-up capital of 
RM100 million and a network of 14 branches with more than 3,000 agents. 

BUILDING CONFIDENCE AND TRUST

At OAC Malaysia, building confidence and trust has always been the core. We put customers first by treating 
them as partners, fostering trust and respect through our unwavering commitment and uncompromising 
quality of service. 

We have a proven track record of building confidence and trust that can be traced back to our humble 
beginnings more than 50 years ago. We have solid and lasting partnerships with some of the biggest names 
in Malaysian business, who bank on our comprehensive range of general insurance products and excellent 
customer service. 

Trust comes with confidence. Our clients enjoy this confidence through our established corporate reputation 
and our affiliations with the Great Eastern and OCBC Group (‘Group’). With the legacy of integrity and 
professionalism, as well as the financial security and stability of the Group, OAC Malaysia is well positioned to 
continue its growth and expansion in years to come.

372.43

757.54
92.59

31.79
54.04

384.37

817.33
94.62

32.53
53.03

196.68

196.47
157.85

17.94
5.16
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
 
The principal activity of the Company is the underwriting of all classes of general insurance business.

There has been no significant change in the nature of the principal activity during the financial year.

RESULTS

Net profit for the year

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than as 
disclosed in the financial statements. 

In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the operations of the Company during the financial year were not 
substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

DIVIDENDS

The amounts of dividend paid by the Company since 31 December 2012 were as follows:

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2012 as reported
in the Directors’ report of that year:

Final single tier dividend of RM0.45 per ordinary share on
100,000,000 ordinary shares paid on 29 April 2013. 

RM 

53,026,206

RM

 

45,000,000



Overseas Assurance Corporation (Malaysia) Berhad (102249-P)
(A member of Great Eastern Holdings Limited)

Annual Report 2013 Building Confidence & Trust
!"#!$

DIRECTORS’ REPORT10

DIVIDENDS (CONT’D.)            
 
At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company, a final single tier dividend in respect of 
the financial year ended 31 December 2013 of RM0.30 per ordinary share on 100,000,000 ordinary shares, 
amounting to a dividend payable of RM30,000,000 will be proposed for shareholder’s approval.

The financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, 
if approved by the shareholder, will be accounted for in the shareholder’s equity as appropriation of retained 
earnings in the next financial year ending 31 December 2014.      
 
             
DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the date of this 
report are:             
             
~ Mrs Fang Ai Lian (nee Ho Ai Lian) - Chairman          
~ Mr Christopher Brian Wei           
~ Y Bhg Dato’ Yeoh Beow Tit           
~ Y Bhg Dato Koh Yaw Hui          
~ Mr Lee Kong Yip           
~ Y Bhg Dato’ Ooi Sang Kuang (Resigned on 31 December 2013)      
             
In accordance with Article 79 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr Christopher Brian Wei and Mr Lee 
Kong Yip retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
  
      
DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any arrangement to 
which the Company was a party, whereby the Directors might acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of 
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, other than the options over shares in the 
Company’s ultimate holding company as disclosed in this report.       
   
Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit 
(other than benefits included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the 
Directors as shown in Notes 24(b) and 31(b) to the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the 
Company or a related corporation with any Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member or with a 
company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest required to be disclosed under Section 169(8) 
of the Companies Act, 1965.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

According to the register of Directors’ shareholdings, the interests of the Directors in office at the end of the 
financial year in shares and options over shares in the Company’s ultimate holding company, Oversea-Chinese 
Banking Corporation Limited (“OCBC Bank”) during the financial year were as follows:

Shareholdings in which
Directors have a direct interest

Shareholdings in which Directors are deemed
to have an interest

a) Ordinary shares of OCBC Bank
  68,671 

 345,815 

 - 

 74,542 

 124,108 

 62,021 

29,961 

25,639 

  1.1.2013    Acquired    Disposed   31.12.2013

  1.1.2013   Granted    Vested   31.12.2013

 6,000 

 - 

 5,163 

 13,214 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 (7,000)

 - 

 57,775 

 - 

 13,545 

  - 

 - 

 (4,082)

74,671 

345,815 

5,163 

80,756 

124,108 

119,796 (1)

29,961 (2)

35,102 (3)

Mrs Fang Ai Lian (nee Ho Ai Lian) 

Y Bhg Dato’ Yeoh Beow Tit

Y Bhg Dato’ Ooi Sang Kuang   

Y Bhg Dato Koh Yaw Hui 

Mr Lee Kong Yip

Mr Christopher Brian Wei

Y Bhg Dato’ Yeoh Beow Tit

Y Bhg Dato Koh Yaw Hui   

 
Notes:            

(1)  Comprises deemed interest in 119,796 ordinary shares subject to award(s) under the OCBC Deferred Share Plan.

(2)  Comprises deemed interest in 29,960 ordinary shares subject to award(s) under the OCBC Deferred Share Plan and subscription   
      rights over one (1) ordinary share granted under the OCBC Employee Share Purchase Plan.

(3)  Comprises deemed interest in 35,102 ordinary shares subject to award(s) under the OCBC Deferred Share Plan.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONT’D.)

Shareholdings in which
Directors have a direct interest

Options held by Directors in their own name

b) 5.1% non cumulative non convertible Class B
    Preference Shares in OCBC Bank 

    Mrs Fang Ai Lian (nee Ho Ai Lian)

c) Options to subscribe
    for ordinary shares of 
    OCBC Bank

    Y Bhg Dato’ Yeoh Beow Tit

    Y Bhg Dato Koh Yaw Hui

    Mr Christopher Brian Wei

1,700 

50,000 

 50,000 

32,000 

25,000 

25,000 

 30,000 

23,224 

 40,000 

 36,773 

 84,010 

 -

 

562,441 

 - 

13.3.2017

13.3.2018

7.4.2015

22.5.2016

13.3.2017

13.3.2018

15.3.2019

14.3.2020

13.3.2021

13.3.2022

13.3.2023

13.3.2022

13.3.2023

8.59 

7.52 

5.78 

6.58 

8.59 

7.52 

4.14 

8.76 

9.35 

8.80 

10.30 

8.80 

10.30 

  1.1.2013    Acquired    Redeemed   31.12.2013

Expiry
date

Exercise
price S$  1.1.2013   Granted    Exercised  31.12.2013

- (1,700)

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 185,901 

-          

 1,037,849 

  - 

 - 

 (12,000)

 (5,000)

 (5,000)

 (5,000)

 (3,224)

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 -  

 -

 50,000 

 50,000 

 20,000 

 20,000 

 20,000 

 25,000 

 20,000 

 40,000 

 36,773 

 84,010 

 185,901 

 562,441 

 1,037,849 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has taken concerted steps to comply with Bank Negara Malaysia’s guidelines BNM/RH/GL 
003-2 on “Prudential Framework of Corporate Governance for Insurers” including the best practices referred 
to in the guideline. The Company is committed to the principles prescribed in this guideline to ensure public 
accountability at all times. Further details are disclosed on pages 16 to 30 of the financial statements. 
 
            
OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

(a)

to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making 
of provision for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off 
and that adequate provision had been made for doubtful debts; and
 
to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values as shown in the accounting 
records in the ordinary course of business have been written down to an amount which they might be 
expected so to realise.

the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of provision for doubtful debts in the financial 
statements of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent; and
  
the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Company misleading.

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(ii)

Before the balance sheet and income statement of the Company were made out, the Directors took 
reasonable steps:           
 

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render:  
          

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which would 
render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Company misleading or 
inappropriate.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this 
report or in the financial statements of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial 
statements misleading.

(b)

(c)

(d)
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONT’D.)       
      
(e) At the date of this report, there does not exist:

(f)  In the opinion of the Directors:          
  
 

For the purpose of paragraphs (e)(ii) and (f)(i) above, contingent or other liabilities do not include liabilities arising 
from contracts of insurance underwritten in the ordinary course of business of the Company.

any charge on the assets of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year which 
secures the liabilities of any other person; or     
           
any contingent liability in respect of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year. 
         
           

(i)

(ii)

no contingent liability or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within 
the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of the 
Company to meet its obligations as and when they fall due; and  
           
no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the 
end of the financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of the 
operations of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made.

(i)

(ii)

Before the balance sheet and income statement of the Company were made out, the Directors took 
reasonable steps to ascertain that there was adequate provision for its insurance contract liabilities in 
accordance with the valuation method specified in Part D of the Risk-Based Capital (“RBC”) Framework for 
insurers issued by Bank Negara Malaysia (“BNM”).     

(g)
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS           
  
There were no significant events during or subsequent events after the financial year. 

AUDITORS            
 
The auditors, Ernst & Young, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.   
             
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 24 January 2014.

Koh Yaw Hui  Yeoh Beow Tit
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (as referred to in the Directors! Report)     
       
Overseas Assurance Corporation (Malaysia) Berhad (the “Company”) is committed to uphold good corporate 
governance practices, in conformity with Bank Negara Malaysia (“BNM”) Guidelines on “Prudential Framework 
of Corporate Governance for Insurers” (BNM/RH/GL 003-2) dated 19 June 2013 (the “Framework”) and 
is continually enhancing standards of the overall governance of the Company. The Framework is divided 
into six main sections namely, Board Responsibility and Oversight, Management Accountability, Corporate 
Independence, Internal Controls and Operational Risk Management, Public Accountability, and Financial 
Reporting. There are 33 principles in the Framework.   
             
The Company adopts management practices that are consistent with the Framework. It has also complied 
with the prescriptive applications and most of the best practices principles enshrined in the Framework. 

           
PART A. BOARD RESPONSIBILITY AND OVERSIGHT       
      
Board’s Conduct Of Its Affairs, Composition And Balance      
       
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) heading the Company comprises 6 members and all are Non-Executive 
Directors. A majority of the Non-Executive Directors are Independent Directors. The Independent Directors 
provide unbiased and independent views, advice and judgment on issues for the Board’s deliberation. All 
Directors comply with the prescribed maximum limit of other directorships held.

The Board has overall responsibility for leading the Company and providing strategic directions in terms of 
corporate objectives, monitoring performance goals, and business strategies for the Company. 

The composition of the Board as at 31 December 2013 was as follows:

Members Status of Directorship

Mrs Fang Ai Lian (nee Ho Ai Lian) - Chairman

Mr Christopher Brian Wei 

Y Bhg Dato’ Yeoh Beow Tit

Y Bhg Dato Koh Yaw Hui 

Mr Lee Kong Yip

Y Bhg Dato’ Ooi Sang Kuang

  (Resigned on 31 December 2013)   

      

Independent Non-Executive Director  

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director  

Independent Non-Executive Director  

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director  

Independent Non-Executive Director 

Independent Non-Executive Director

Note:

Y Bhg Dato’ Ooi Sang Kuang had resigned from the Board on 31 December 2013 and simultaneously relinquished all his Board 
Committees’ positions.
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PART A. BOARD RESPONSIBILITY AND OVERSIGHT (CONT’D.)     
        
Board’s Conduct Of Its Affairs, Composition And Balance (cont’d.)

The Board members are professionals from diverse backgrounds and qualifications and collectively, have a wide 
range of skills and specialised knowledge, capabilities and core competencies in areas that include insurance, 
banking, financial services, actuarial science, investment, stock-broking, risk management, accounting and 
auditing. Directors who serve on the Board Committees have an appropriate mix of skills and capabilities, 
taking into account the skillsets required for the Board Committees to be able to perform their respective role 
and responsibilities.

Each Director has been approved by BNM for appointment or re-appointment (as the case may be) to the 
Company’s Board for a term of not more than three years. Applications for re-appointment of Directors have 
been submitted to BNM for approval at least three months before the expiry of the BNM term of appointment, 
in accordance with the provisions of BNM Guidelines on “Minimum Standards for Prudential Management of 
Insurers (Consolidated)” (BNM/RH/GL 003-01).

The Company’s Articles of Association provide for one-third of the remaining directors to retire from office by 
rotation and if eligible, to be re-elected at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company. A Director who 
is over 70 years old is subject to re-appointment annually in accordance with Section 129(6) of the Companies 
Act, 1965. For Directors whose term of appointment, as approved by BNM, has not expired at the time of the 
AGM, but who are required to retire by rotation from office or pursuant to Section 129(6) and are eligible for 
re-election/re-appointment, BNM’s approval is not required to re-elect/re-appoint the Directors concerned at 
the AGM.

On a yearly basis, the Directors are subject to an internal declaration to review their status of compliance with 
Part XII of the Insurance Regulations 1996 and Section 60 of the Financial Services Act 2013 which came 
into effect on 30 June 2013, on their fulfilment of the minimum criteria of a “fit and proper person”. Pursuant 
to the “Fit and Proper Policy for Key Responsible Persons” (the “KRP Policy”) of the Company which is in line 
with BNM Guidelines on “Fit and Proper Criteria” (BNM/RH/GL 018-5), all Directors and the Chief Executive 
Officer (“CEO”), amongst others, are collectively referred to as Key Responsible Persons (“KRP”). Such KRPs, 
prior to or on appointment/re-appointment (upon the expiry of their respective BNM term of appointment) and 
thereafter on an annual basis, will need to declare that they remain “fit and proper”. 
             
The Board meets regularly during the year. The dates are scheduled in advance before the end of the preceding 
financial year. In addition to the scheduled meeting dates, the Board has agreed that additional meetings would 
be arranged to discuss any matters which require the Board’s consideration. In 2013, the Board held six 
scheduled Board meetings and two ad-hoc Board meetings, and Directors attended all Board meetings. 
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PART A. BOARD RESPONSIBILITY AND OVERSIGHT (CONT’D.)     
        
Board’s Conduct Of Its Affairs, Composition And Balance (cont’d.)

The Board has in place a formal and transparent procedure for the appointment and re-appointment of 
Directors and the CEO. Proposals for the appointment of new Directors to the Board, the CEO and the Key 
Senior Officers (“KSOs”) are reviewed by the Nominating Committee (“NC”). After considering the nominees 
proposed by the NC, the Board appoints the Directors, the CEO and the KSOs.

Besides carrying out its fiduciary and statutory responsibilities, the Board approves the annual business 
and strategic plans of the Company. It oversees the management of the Company’s business affairs, and 
regularly reviews the financial performance of the Company. Matters reserved for the Board’s decision include 
corporate restructuring, major acquisition and disposal of assets by the Company, all material related party 
transactions, authority levels for the Company’s core functions, outsourcing of core business functions and 
corporate policies on investment, underwriting, reinsurance, claims management and risk management. The 
Senior Management Team of the Company are invited to attend Board meetings to provide additional insights, 
views and explanations into the matters being discussed.

The Directors have been issued with a Directors’ Handbook on the Company, Code of Ethics for Directors and 
a full set of the guidelines and circulars issued by BNM since 1997. The Company’s Directors have attended 
the Corporate Directors’ Training Programme conducted under the auspices of the Companies Commission 
of Malaysia.

A newly appointed Director receives an in-house orientation and education training program which includes 
presentations by senior management staff of the various functions of the Company. Additionally, the Company 
organised in-house training which serves to familiarise the Directors with the general insurance industry as 
well as the Company’s business practices, accounting by funds, product launches, compliance controls, 
risks overview, new legislation and corporate governance practices. The Company encourages continuous 
professional development for the benefit of Directors and, on an on-going basis, Directors are kept abreast of 
the developments in the market place through attendance of relevant education programmes, seminars, talks 
on relevant subject fields, as well as circulation of business reading materials on a monthly basis. The ICLIF 
Leadership and Governance Centre are more flexible in their programme offerings and most Directors have 
benefited from the Financial Institutions Directors’ Education Programme. They also participate in on-going 
talks organised by the ICLIF Leadership and Governance Centre. Directors are also promptly updated with any 
policy issues, administrative changes and new regulatory developments as appropriate. The Company has 
made available resources for Directors to receive training in any specific area.
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PART A. BOARD RESPONSIBILITY AND OVERSIGHT (CONT’D.)     
        
Chairman And Chief Executive Officer        
     
The positions and roles of the Chairman and the CEO are distinct and separate, with clear division of responsibility 
between them to ensure an appropriate balance of authority, increased accountability and greater capacity of 
the Board for independent decision making. For the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Company’s 
Chairman, Mrs Fang Ai Lian (nee Ho Ai Lian) was an Independent Non-Executive Director; and the CEO of the 
Company was Mr Ng Kok Kheng. The Chairman and the CEO are not related to each other.   
          
The Chairman’s principal responsibilities include leading the Board and fostering the Board’s effectiveness. 
The Chairman, with the assistance of the Company Secretary, facilitates the convening of Board meetings. 
She sets guidelines and monitors the quality and timeliness of the flow of information from Management on 
matters to be considered at meetings of the Board. The Chairman also facilitates robust discussions and 
deliberations in Board meetings, encourages constructive relations between Directors, as well as between the 
Board and Management. She promotes high standards of corporate governance with the full support of the 
other Directors, the Company Secretary and Management.

The CEO manages the Company and oversees its business operations in accordance with the Group’s 
strategies, plans and policies to achieve the corporate performance and financial goals, ensuring inter alia, 
operational and organisational efficiency, profit performance and effective risk management.

The implementation of the Board’s decisions is carried out with the assistance of the Senior Management 
Team of the Company. Collectively they are responsible for the day-to-day operations and administration of 
the Company.

Access To Information           
  
Board members are provided with adequate and timely information and reports, including background 
explanatory information relating to matters brought before the Board, forecasts, regular internal financial 
statements of the Company and explanations of material variances between budgeted and actual results. 
The Directors have independent access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and the Senior 
Management Team.

The Board Members are also provided with access to all information within the Company whether as a full 
board or in their individual capacity, in furtherance of their duties.
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PART A. BOARD RESPONSIBILITY AND OVERSIGHT (CONT’D.)

Board Committees           
  
The Board has established specialised Board Committees to assist it in carrying out its oversight responsibilities 
over the Company’s operations and in ensuring good corporate governance practices by the Company. 
The Board Committees, namely the Audit Committee, Board Risk Committee, Nominating Committee and 
Remuneration Committee, examine specific issues within their respective terms of reference as approved by 
the Board and report to the Board with their recommendations. The ultimate responsibility for decision making 
lies with the Board. Minutes of meetings of these Committees are tabled at Board meetings. 

Audit Committee           
  
The Audit Committee (“AC”) comprises the following three members, all of whom are Independent Non-
Executive Directors: 

~ Y Bhg Dato’ Yeoh Beow Tit  - Chairman
~ Mrs Fang Ai Lian (nee Ho Ai Lian) 
~ Mr Lee Kong Yip

The members of the AC are appropriately qualified to discharge their responsibilities as prescribed by the 
Framework. The AC is authorised by the Board to investigate any matter within its terms of reference and 
has the co-operation of and has full and independent access to the Company’s Senior Management and 
Internal Auditors. The AC, in performing its functions, has met at least annually with the internal and external 
auditors, without the presence of Management. Adequate resources are made available to the AC to enable 
it to discharge its roles and responsibilities. The internal audit function is to provide an independent assurance 
on the adequacy, integrity, compliance and effectiveness of the Company’s overall system of internal controls. 
The Chief Internal Auditor reports functionally to the AC and Group Chief Internal Auditor, and administratively 
to the CEO.
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Reviewed with the internal and external auditors, their audit plans, evaluation of the system of internal 
accounting controls and audit findings as well as Management’s response to those findings; 
            
Reviewed the scope and results of the internal audit procedures and resources needed;   
             
Reviewed with the internal and external auditors, the effectiveness of the material internal controls including 
the financial controls of the Company;

Reviewed with the external auditors, the quarterly financial statements and the audited financial statements 
of the Company for the financial year and the auditors’ report thereon and thereafter submitted the audited 
financial statements to the Board for consideration and approval;      
      
Reviewed the assistance given by the officers of the Company, including the internal audit department, to 
the external auditors;           
            
Reviewed the scope and results of audit procedures and its cost effectiveness and reviewed the independence 
and objectivity of the external auditors before nominating the external auditors for re-appointment;  
            
Reviewed related party transactions to ascertain that the terms of such transactions were at arm’s length basis, 
on normal commercial terms and not prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its shareholders; 
           
Reviewed with the external auditors and the Senior Management Team, the impact of new or proposed 
changes in accounting standards, policies or regulatory requirements on the financial statements; and 
           
Reviewed and approved among others, the appointment, remuneration and performance evaluation of the 
Chief Internal Auditor.           
 
            

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)
 

(f)

(g)

(h)

( i )

PART A. BOARD RESPONSIBILITY AND OVERSIGHT (CONT’D.)     
        
Audit Committee (cont’d.)    
             
The AC met ten times during the financial year ended 31 December 2013 and these meetings were attended 
by all members.

The AC carried out functions as specified in the Companies Act 1965, Financial Services Act 2013,  BNM 
Guidelines and other relevant guidelines and regulations.

The AC discharged the following functions:
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PART A. BOARD RESPONSIBILITY AND OVERSIGHT (CONT’D.)     
        
Board Risk Committee     
   
The Board Risk Committee (“BRC”) supports the Board in the overall risk management oversight of the 
Company and in ensuring the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management processes and practices 
put in place by the Company. The BRC comprises the following three members, all of whom are Independent 
Non-Executive Directors:           
          
~ Mr Lee Kong Yip – Chairman          
~ Y Bhg Dato’ Yeoh Beow Tit          
~ Y Bhg Dato’ Ooi Sang Kuang (Resigned as BRC member on 31 December 2013)    
             
The BRC meets at least four times a year. The Committee met six times during the financial year ended 31 
December 2013 and these meetings were attended by all members.     
            
The BRC is responsible for the following:

Governance And Oversight

To review the overall risk management philosophy in line with the overall corporate strategy and risk tolerance 
set and approved by the Board;          
  
To review and endorse frameworks, policies, strategies and limits relating to the Company’s risk management, 
investment management, asset-liability management and liability management activities for the Board’s 
approval;

To endorse the Group Risk Management Charter outlining the fundamental principles, roles, responsibilities, 
authority and reporting line of the Risk Management and Compliance function for the Board’s adoption; 
           
To review the appointment, annual performance evaluation and remuneration of the Head of Risk 
Management and Compliance, before submission to the NC/Remuneration Committee for endorsement 
and the Board for approval;          
  
To review and recommend risk tolerance levels (Risk Appetite Statement as well as Regulatory and Economic 
Capital Limits) for the Board’s approval;

To oversee the establishment and implementation of approved frameworks, policies, strategies and limits 
and, where required, to approve deviations from approved frameworks and policies;    
        
            
            
            

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d) 

(e)

(f)
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PART A. BOARD RESPONSIBILITY AND OVERSIGHT (CONT’D.)     
        
Board Risk Committee (cont’d.)         
    
Governance And Oversight (cont’d.)

            

Risk Management           
  
(m) To review reports to monitor and control the Company’s risk exposures; and    
     
(n)  To review and endorse the annual Risk Disclosures for the Board’s approval.

Investment, Asset-liability And Liability Management

To review the adequacy of risk management practices for material risks, such as market, credit, liquidity, 
insurance, operational and compliance risks on a regular basis;

To review Management’s frameworks and policies that govern the process for identifying, assessing and 
managing risks and review Management’s performance against these frameworks and policies;

To review the adequacy of frameworks, policies, strategies and resources for the performance of risk 
management, investment management, asset-liability management and liability management activities; 
           
To initiate any review and action as appropriate for prudent risk management;    
        
To ensure that the risk management function has adequate infrastructure and resources and that it is staffed 
by an appropriate number of experienced and qualified employees who are sufficiently independent to 
perform their duties objectively; and

To review the scope, effectiveness and objectivity of the risk management function.    
        

(g)

(h)

( i )

( j )

(k)

( l )

To review and endorse for the Board’s approval, the annual strategic asset allocation and tactical asset 
allocation limits; new asset class and complex structures, investment transactions and new insurance 
product risks.

(o)
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PART A. BOARD RESPONSIBILITY AND OVERSIGHT (CONT’D.)   
        
Nominating Committee          
   
The Nominating Committee (“NC”) comprises the following five members, four of whom are Independent Non-
Executive Directors:
 
~ Y Bhg Dato’ Yeoh Beow Tit - Chairman 
~ Mrs Fang Ai Lian (nee Ho Ai Lian)
~ Mr Christopher Brian Wei          
~ Mr Lee Kong Yip           
~ Y Bhg Dato’ Ooi Sang Kuang (Resigned as NC member on 31 December 2013)    
            
The members of the NC possess the appropriate mix of skills and experience, and are appropriately qualified 
to discharge their responsibilities.  

The NC meets at least once a year. The Committee met four times during the financial year ended 31 December 
2013 and these meetings were attended by all members.

With the endorsement of the Board, the NC has established the minimum requirements for the Board and the 
CEO to perform their responsibilities effectively following statutory and regulatory requirements.

The NC is entrusted with the responsibility of proposing new nominees for appointment to the Board to 
ensure that nominations of new Directors are made in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders. 
It assesses the suitability of the new nominees, by taking into consideration their professional qualifications, 
integrity, financial and commercial business experience, field of expertise relevant to the Company and potential 
to complement the skills, knowledge and expertise of the Board.                                                                                

The NC makes recommendations to the Board on all such nominations of Directors as well as nominations 
to fill up Board Committees. The NC also recommends the re-appointment and re-election of Directors to 
the Board. In considering the re-appointment and re-election, the NC will take into account the Directors’ 
attendance and participation at meetings, their expertise and commitment, as well as their contributions to 
Board discussions and to the effectiveness of the Board.
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PART A. BOARD RESPONSIBILITY AND OVERSIGHT (CONT’D.)

Nominating Committee (cont’d.)
   
Apart from nomination/appointment of new Directors or re-appointment of existing Directors, the NC is also 
responsible for proposing nominees for the positions of CEO and KSOs of the Company.

The procedures for such nominations and appointments, including re-appointments, have been put in place 
and approved by the Board. These have been drawn up in line with the prescribed regulatory and legal 
requirements.                                                          
    
On an annual basis, the NC reviews the Board’s structure, size and composition and makes recommendations 
to the Board with regards to any changes that are deemed necessary.

The NC has in place a mechanism to carry out the Board-approved process for assessing the effectiveness of 
the Board as a whole and of the Board Committees, and presents its findings to the Board. The Board’s profile 
is reviewed on an annual basis, considering the current needs and aspirations of the Company. No Director 
was involved in the assessment of his own contribution to the effectiveness of the Board.   
     
Whenever applicable and consistent with the prescribed Framework, the NC’s recommendations would 
be made in consultation with the Nominating Committee of the Company’s holding company, taking into 
consideration the contributions of the Directors and of the CEO and KSOs in discharging their duties for the 
benefit of the Company and of the Group.         
    
The NC is also responsible to ensure all KRPs fulfil the fit and proper requirements, in line with the KRP Policy.

Remuneration Committee           
   
The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) comprises the following four members, all of whom are Independent 
Non-Executive Directors:         

~ Y Bhg Dato’ Yeoh Beow Tit – Chairman    
~ Mrs Fang Ai Lian (nee Ho Ai Lian) 
~ Mr Lee Kong Yip
~ Y Bhg Dato’ Ooi Sang Kuang (Resigned as RC member on 31 December 2013)    
       
The RC meets at least once a year. The Committee met three times during the financial year ended 31 
December 2013 and these meetings were attended by all members. 
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PART A. BOARD RESPONSIBILITY AND OVERSIGHT (CONT’D.)

Remuneration Committee (cont’d.)
       
A Board-approved Framework on Remuneration for Directors, the CEO and KSOs is in place. The RC is 
charged with the responsibility of reviewing and recommending to the Board, the remuneration packages of 
Directors, the CEO and KSOs. This will ensure that the Company remains competitive in terms of compensation 
and is able to attract, retain and motivate the calibre needed to manage the Company successfully, while at 
the same time satisfying itself that the compensation packages are consistent with the prudent management 
of the Company’s affairs and not excessive. 

Non-Executive Directors are paid Directors’ fees which are recommended by the Board for approval at the 
Company’s AGM.

The RC reviews the Directors’ fees on an annual basis and makes recommendations to the Board for any 
changes. No Director was involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Whenever applicable and consistent with the Framework, the RC’s recommendations will be made in 
consultation with the Remuneration Committee of the Company’s holding company, taking into consideration 
the contributions of the Directors and of the CEO and KSOs in discharging their duties for the benefit of the 
Company and of the Group.

          
PART B. MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTABILITY       
             
Whilst the Board is responsible for establishing appropriate framework and policies within which the Company 
should operate, the Management is accountable for effecting such policies and responsible for accomplishing 
the Company’s strategic objectives. All framework/policies/charters including the Authority Grid, are annually 
reviewed by the BRC and approved by the Board. 

There is a clear division of responsibilities between top management positions. The Company has an 
organisation structure that is well documented and clearly establishes the job description and authority limits of 
the senior management, line management and executive employees. Significant changes to the organisation 
structure are communicated to the staff.
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PART B. MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTABILITY (CONT’D.)

The Authority Grid of the Company, which essentially is a culmination of the various authority limits delegated 
to the Board as well as the CEO, is in place. The Grid covers business strategy and growth, including capital 
requirements and investment vehicles, people, risk, donations, appointment of consultants and operational 
matters such as balance sheet management, transaction approvals and write-offs.    
             
Directors and relevant officers of the Company comply with the disclosure requirements and avoid conflicts 
of interest as enshrined in the Companies Act 1965 and Financial Services Act 2013. All tender, investment 
activities and related party transactions of the Company were conducted at arm’s length and on commercial 
terms.

All policies relating to underwriting, claims, reinsurance and corporate communications as referred to in the 
Framework were approved by the Board and reviewed accordingly to keep abreast with changes.  

PART C. CORPORATE INDEPENDENCE        
     
The Company has met all the requirements of BNM Guidelines on “Related Party Transactions” (BNM/RH/GL 
018-6) in respect of related party transactions of a material nature. All material related party transactions are 
disclosed in the audited financial statements in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standard 124: 
Related Party Disclosures; please refer to Note 31 in the Company’s financial statements. The Board has set 
a more stringent requirement, in that all related party transactions irrespective of materiality must be submitted 
to the AC for review prior to their submission to the Board for approval/notation.

PART D. INTERNAL CONTROLS AND OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT    
         
The Board has overall oversight responsibility to ensure that the Company maintains an adequate system 
of internal controls and that the Company has effective and efficient operations, risk management and 
internal controls, as well as procedures to ensure compliance with laws, regulations, internal guidelines and 
requirements to safeguard the assets of the Company and stakeholders’ interests.
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PART D. INTERNAL CONTROLS AND OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D.)

The Compliance Matrix and Compliance Requirements Self-Assessment are tools to assist the respective 
Head of Departments in conducting self-assessment on the effectiveness of the compliance procedures and 
identification of compliance gaps. The Risk and Control Self Assessment process that is in place enables the 
various functions to identify and self-assess the management of risks and effectiveness of internal controls of 
the Company. Further, the Company has established its risk appetite statement, which is reviewed annually.

The investment authority limits for exposure are set at various levels with limits which are more stringent than 
the statutory/regulatory limits as set out in the Authority Grid. The Company has complied with the limits 
pursuant to BNM Guidelines on “Risk-Based Capital Framework for Insurers” (BNM/RH/GL 003-24).

A  Reinsurance Management Strategy (“RMS”) for the insurance risks covered by the Company is in place. 
The RMS defines the responsibility of the Board/Management in managing and operating the reinsurance 
programme. 

All new general insurance products are governed by the Company’s Product Development Policy (“Policy”). 
All products launched by the Company will require the necessary approvals in line with the approved Policy. A 
product risk assessment also forms part of the process for new product approvals which includes considerations 
on risks relating to pricing, investment, marketability and support for the product.    
  
Half-yearly stress tests are conducted to ascertain the Company’s financial condition under various risk 
scenarios.

The Directors, CEO and Senior Management Team of the Company are committed to maintaining a risk-
conscious culture in the Company. The Company has adopted its holding company’s Enterprise Risk 
Management Framework and other supplementary risk management frameworks, and they provide broad 
guiding principles and the minimum standards on risk management. The Framework also affirms the role and 
responsibilities for risk management and establishes the monitoring and reporting requirements, which are all 
aimed at embedding sound risk management practices and culture within the business and ensuring that the 
Company continues to expand its business with the right risk management discipline, practices and processes 
in place. The Company has also established an Information Security Policy and Information Security Standards 
to protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of the Company’s data.

The disclosures of the Company’s risk management policies are set out under Note 32 to the Company’s 
financial statements.

The Company has in place robust Business Continuity Management practices, with adequate facility for 
business resumptions. Disaster recovery and business continuity testings are carried out semi-annually and 
annually respectively.
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PART D. INTERNAL CONTROLS AND OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D.)
          
Internal Audit            

The Company utilises the outsourced services of the Internal Audit Department of Great Eastern Life Assurance 
(Malaysia) Berhad, which assists the AC in discharging its duties and responsibilities. The requirements of the 
BNM Guidelines on “Internal Audit Function of Licensed Institutions” (BNM/RH/GL 013-4) have been met. 
The AC reviews the yearly internal audit plan and the audit reports as well as the follow-up actions on audit 
observations made by the internal auditors.        
     
Continuous assessment of the effectiveness and adequacy of internal controls, which includes an independent 
examination of controls by the internal audit function, ensures that corrective actions, where necessary, are 
taken in a timely manner. All audit reports are submitted to the AC, CEO and Management of the unit being 
audited within one month of completion of field work. Audit findings and recommendations are communicated 
to Senior Management Team and closely monitored for resolution. The activities of the AC are submitted 
annually to BNM.           
  
In terms of segregation of duties, procedures are in place to ensure that staff are not assigned with potential 
conflicting responsibilities, relating to, amongst others, approvals, disbursements and administration of policies, 
premium or investment matters. 
             

PART E. PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY AND FAIR PRACTICES      
       
The Company recognises that it is responsible for maintaining a strong public accountability and promotion 
of fair practices. It has in place procedures and operational policies which are designed to ensure compliance 
with the “Provisions Relating to Policies” under Sections 84 and 128 of the Financial Services Act 2013 (as 
well as Schedule 8). The Company’s employees and members of the field force are required to comply with 
the Company’s internal policy and with the Code of Ethics and Conduct issued by the General Insurance 
Association of Malaysia as well as the circulars of BNM, where applicable. In order to ensure proper segregation 
of duties, the Company discourages siblings and spouses from working together in the same department or 
handling similar functions. To further promote a healthy work culture, the Company enforces a block leave 
policy and reinforces corporate values through employee-related activities. Staff are further incentivised with a 
birthday leave. 
             
Members of the public are made aware of avenues for which they can appeal against the Company’s practices 
or decisions by alerting them via the policy contracts to the existence of the Financial Mediation Bureau and 
BNM’s Customer Services Bureau. This is in compliance with the requirements of BNM Guidelines on “Claims 
Settlement Practices (Consolidated)” (BNM/RH/GL 003-9). The Company has in place a Treating Customer 
Fairly (“TCF”) Policy that defines the responsibilities of the Board and Management in ensuring that customers 
are treated fairly when dealing with the Company.
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PART E. PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY AND FAIR PRACTICES (CONT’D.)    
         
The BNM Guidelines on “Unfair Practices in Insurance Business” (BNM/RH/GL 003-6) was issued as part 
of a cohesive effort to promote higher standards of transparency, professionalism, greater market discipline 
and accountability in the conduct of insurance business and protection of policy owners. The Company has 
implemented measures to enhance compliance of requirements prescribed in BNM/RH/GL 003-6.  As part 
of its commitment to provide effective and fair services, a Complaint Handling Unit has been established in 
accordance with BNM Guidelines on “Complaints Handling” (BNM/RH/GL 000-4) where the unit acts as a 
single point of contact for customers to lodge a complaint as well as to ensure that complaints are resolved in 
a fair and consistent manner.          
   
With the establishment of an Anti-Money Laundering and Counter Financing of Terrorism (“AML/CFT”) 
Framework by the Company in ensuring compliance with relevant AML/CFT national laws, regulations and 
guidelines, the Company is constantly enhancing its AML/CFT measures, focusing on areas relating to Know 
Your Customer/Customer Due Diligence (“KYC/CDD”) at the stage of acceptance of new business. The 
robust KYC/CDD standards and processes in place act as a barrier in safeguarding the Company’s interest 
by minimising the risk of the Company being used as a platform for money laundering or terrorist financing 
activities.

A Whistle Blowing Policy is also in place to encourage staff and external parties to raise concerns or report on 
irregularities and yet be assured of protection from reprisals for making such disclosures in good faith.

PART F. FINANCIAL REPORTING  
        
The Board has overall oversight responsibility, and exercises due care and diligence in ensuring that the 
Company’s accounting records are properly kept.  It also ensures that the Company’s financial statements 
are prepared and audited in accordance with approved accounting standards and in compliance with the 
regulatory and statutory requirements in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the Company’s financial 
position.          
             
The Board and the AC are provided with regular comprehensive information on the financial reports, any 
variances and analyses of the financial data of the Company.      
       
On a monthly basis, the business and operational performance reports are submitted to the Senior Management 
Team for review so that necessary remedial actions can be taken on any shortfall or variances against budgets. 
The Board notes the decisions and salient matters deliberated by the Board or Management Committees 
through the minutes of their meetings which are tabled to the Board.     
        
The abridged financial statements of the Company are published in the national press and copies are also 
displayed at all branch offices and posted on the Company’s website.
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PURSUANT TO SECTION 169(15) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965     
    
We, Yeoh Beow Tit and Koh Yaw Hui, being two of the Directors of Overseas Assurance Corporation (Malaysia) 
Berhad, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Directors, the accompanying financial statements set out 
on pages 34 to 121 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2013 and of its financial performance and the cash 
flows for the year then ended.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 24 January 2014.

Koh Yaw Hui  

Khoo Sook Hooi

STATUTORY DECLARATION 
 
         
PURSUANT TO SECTION 169(16) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965     
    
I, Khoo Sook Hooi, being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Overseas Assurance 
Corporation (Malaysia) Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial statements 
set out on pages 34 to 121 are in my opinion correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously 
believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared     
by the abovenamed Khoo Sook Hooi at     
Kuala Lumpur in the Federal Territory      
on 24 January 2014

Before me,    

Yeoh Beow Tit 
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Report On The Financial Statements       

We have audited the financial statements of Overseas Assurance Corporation (Malaysia) Berhad, which 
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2013, and the income statement, statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 34 to 121.

Directors! Responsibility For The Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true 
and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, and for such internal control as the directors determine 
are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors! Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give 
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
TO THE MEMBER OF OVERSEAS ASSURANCE CORPORATION (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial 
Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia 
so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2013 and of its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

Emphasis Of Matter

We draw attention to Note 34 the financial statements which describes the development in respect to 
the determination of Incurred But Not Reported (“IBNR”) claims, and the resultant goodwill, relating to the 
acquisition of certain assets and liabilities of Tahan Insurance Malaysia Berhad (now known as Tahan Malaysia 
Berhad), the values of which are pending the outcome of arbitration proceedings. Our opinion is not qualified 
in respect of this matter.

Report On Other Legal And Regulatory Requirements      
   
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that in our 
opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company 
have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Other Matters

This report is made solely to the member of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the 
Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose.  We do not assume responsibility to any other 
person for the content of this report.

Ernst & Young        Brandon Bruce Sta Maria
AF: 0039        No. 2937/09/15(J)
Chartered Accountants       Chartered Accountant  
        
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia        
24 January 2014

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
TO THE MEMBER OF OVERSEAS ASSURANCE CORPORATION (MALAYSIA) BERHAD (CONT’D.)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian Financial 
Reporting Standards (“MFRS”),  International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and the Companies 
Act, 1965 in Malaysia.           
     
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost convention, 
unless stated otherwise in the accounting policies. The financial statements are presented in Ringgit 
Malaysia (RM), which is the Company’s functional currency.

As at the reporting date, the Company has met the minimum capital requirements as prescribed by the 
Risk-Based Capital Framework issued by Bank Negara Malaysia (“BNM”).     
      
The Company has adopted the new and amended MFRS and IC Interpretations mandatory for annual 
financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 during the financial year 2013.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2013         

The Company is a public limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.  The registered 
office of the Company is located at Level 20, Menara Great Eastern, 303 Jalan Ampang, 50450 Kuala 
Lumpur.
           
The principal activity of the Company is the underwriting of all classes of general insurance business.  
          
There has been no significant change in the nature of the principal activity during the financial year.  
          
The immediate holding company is Overseas Assurance Corporation (Holdings) Berhad, which is 
incorporated in Malaysia. The intermediate holding company is Overseas Assurance Corporation Limited, 
a company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore. The ultimate holding company is Oversea-Chinese 
Banking Corporation Limited (“OCBC Bank”), a public-listed company incorporated in the Republic of 
Singapore.           
 
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution 
of the Directors on 24 January 2014.

2.1 Basis Of Preparation

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.) 

     2.1 Basis Of Preparation (cont’d.)

     2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Property And Equipment And Depreciation

The adoption of the newly effective and revised MFRS, Amendments to Standards and IC Interpretations 
during the year has not resulted in any material financial impacts to the financial statements.

All items of property and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent costs are included 
in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably.  The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.  
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period 
in which they are incurred.         
 
Subsequent to recognition, property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Capital work-in-progress is not depreciated as these assets are not available for use. When capital 
work-in-progress is completed and the asset is available for use, it is reclassifed to the relevant 
category of property and equipment and depreciation on the asset commences.   
       
Depreciation of property and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis, to write-off the cost of 
each asset to its residual value over its estimated useful life. No depreciation is provided for freehold 
land as it has an unlimited useful life and for capital work-in-progress as described above. The 
annual depreciation rates are:
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.) 

     2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

           (a) Property And Equipment And Depreciation (cont’d.)

(b) Investments And Financial Assets    

Buildings - Owner occupied properties        
Office equipment  
Office renovation         
Furniture and fittings           
Motor vehicles          
Computer equipment

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at each financial year 
end to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous 
estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in 
the items of property and equipment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.  The difference between the net disposal proceeds, 
if any, and the net carrying amount is recognised in the income statement.

The Company classifies its financial assets as fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and 
receivables (“LAR”) and available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets. The classification depends on the 
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired or originated.     
     
Financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss include financial instrument with 
embedded derivatives.         
 
All the regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date which is 
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.  Regular way purchases or sales 
of financial assets require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or 
convention in the market place.         
 
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of 
financial assets not at FVTPL, directly attributable transaction costs.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

          (b) Investments And Financial Assets (cont’d.)

               (i) FVTPL

Assets classified as at FVTPL include financial assets held for trading (“HFT”) and those designated 
at fair value through profit or loss at inception. Investments typically bought with the intention to 
sell in the near future are classified as HFT. For investments designated at fair value through profit 
or loss, the following criteria must be met: 
    
-  

-  

These investments are initially recorded at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, these 
investments are remeasured at fair value. Fair value adjustments and realised gains and losses 
are recognised in profit and loss.        
 
Derivatives are financial instruments or contracts where its values vary according to changes in 
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, credit spreads or other variables. Embedded derivatives 
are hybrid financial instruments that include a non-derivative host contract.

(ii) LAR

LAR are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 
in an active market. These investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the 
consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment. All transaction costs directly attributable 
to the acquisition are also included in the cost of the investment. After initial measurement, 
loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost, using the effective yield method, less any 
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when 
the assets are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment such as asset 
liability mismatch, that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or 
recognising gains or losses on a different basis; or

the assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both which 
are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a 
documented risk management or investment strategy.
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Financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual obligations of the financial instruments.

Financial liabilities are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the 
consideration received plus directly attributable transaction costs.  Subsequent to initial recognition, 
they are measured at amortised cost using the effective yield method, except for derivatives which 
are measured at fair value.         
 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or 
expired.  Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement.

(c) Financial Liabilities

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

          (b) Investments And Financial Assets (cont’d.)

               (iii) Financial Assets    

AFS are non-derivative financial assets not classified as LAR or FVTPL.    
     
After initial recognition, AFS are remeasured at fair value. Any gains or losses from changes in 
fair value of AFS financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income, except for 
impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments and interest 
calculated using the effective interest method which are recognised in the income statement. 
The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is recognised in the income statement 
when the financial asset is derecognised.

43
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The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. 
         
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is 
based on the persumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place 
either:

-

-

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company.  
        
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the assets or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic 
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market partcipant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

          (d) Fair Value Measurement

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or      
 
In the absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
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The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the  financial statements are 
catergorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

-

-

-

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement at a whole) at the end of each reporting period.     
     
External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties. Involvement of 
external valuers is decided upon annually by the Finance Department after discussion with and 
approval by the Board and the Company’s Audit Committee. Selection criteria include market 
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. A full 
valuation is done every three years, and a desktop valuation is done annually.

At each reporting date, the Finance Department analyses the movements in the values of assets and 
liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed in accordance with the Company’s 
accounting policies.

The Finance Department and the Company’s external valuers also compares the changes in the fair 
value of each property with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

The valuation results, as performed by the Company’s external valuers, are presented to the Board 
in the year valuation is performed.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

          (d) Fair Value Measurement (cont’d.)

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;  
       
Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inputs that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and      
   
Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inputs that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable.
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At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a 
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.   
          
Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired includes observable data about loss events such 
as significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor, significant adverse changes in the business 
environment in which the issuer or obligor operates and the disappearance of an active market for 
that financial asset because of financial difficulties which indicate that there is measurable decrease 
in the estimated future cash flows. However, it may not be possible to identify a single, discrete 
event that caused the impairment. Rather, the combined effect of several events is considered in 
determining whether an asset is impaired. 

Assets Carried At Amortised Cost   

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortised cost has been 
incurred, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses 
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate/yield. 
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the loss is recorded in the income statement. 
         
The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial 
assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are 
not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an 
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of 
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and the group of financial assets is collectively 
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an 
impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of 
impairment. The impairment assessment is performed at each balance sheet date.   
       
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can 
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously 
recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised 
in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its 
amortised cost at the reversal date.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

          (e) Impairment Of Financial Assets    
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Assets Carried At Cost   

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial asset carried at cost has been 
incurred, the carrying amount will be written down to the recoverable amount. Such impairment 
losses are not reversed in subsequent periods.
 

AFS Financial Assets         
 
If an AFS financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost (net of any 
principal repayment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously 
recognised in the income statement, is transferred from other comprehensive income to the income 
statement.      
          
When assessing the impairment of an equity instrument, the Company considers, in addition to 
observable data about loss events, whether there is a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value 
of the equity instrument, and whether the cost of the investment in the equity instrument may be 
recovered. Where there is evidence that the cost of the investment in the equity instrument may not 
be recovered, an impairment loss is recognised.       
   
Impairment losses on AFS equity investments are not reversed in the income statement in subsequent 
periods. Increases in fair value, if any, subsequent to impairment is recognised in other comprehensive 
income. For AFS debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed in profit or loss if 
an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after 
the recognition of the impairment loss in the income statement.

(f) Financial Instruments: Derecognition Of Financial Assets And Liabilities

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

          (e) Impairment Of Financial Assets (cont’d.)

A financial asset is derecognised when:        
  
-

-

-
         
     (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or     
    
      (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has  
          transferred control of the asset.

The contractual right to receive cash flows from the financial asset has expired;   
      
The Company retains the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset but has assumed 
an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party; or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either:
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Investment properties are properties which are held either to earn rental income or for capital 
appreciation or for both. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value. Fair value is arrived 
at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties and is performed 
by registered independent valuers having an appropriate recognised professional qualification and 
recent experience in the location and category of the properties being valued.   
       
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investments properties are included in the 
income statement in the year in which they arise.       
    
Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the 
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected 
from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are 
recognised in the income statement in the year in which they arise.

Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control 
of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in 
the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of 
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.     
     
Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option on the transferred 
asset, the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset 
that the Company may repurchase, except that in the case of a written put option on an asset 
measured at fair value, the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of 
the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.     
     
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount 
and the sum of (a) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new 
liability assumed) and (b) any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised directly in equity is 
recognised in the income statement. A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under 
the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, 
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

          (f) Financial Instruments: Derecognition Of Financial Assets And Liabilities (cont’d.)  

          (g)  Investment Properties
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Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale if their carrying amount is recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.

This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for 
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary.     

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the non-current assets are measured in accordance 
with applicable MFRSs. On initial classification as held for sale, non-current assets are then measured 
at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Any differences is included in the 
income statement. Non-current assets held for sale are not depreciated.

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. This involves 
recognising identifiable assets and liabilities including contingent liabilities but excluding future 
restructuring liabilities of the acquired business at fair value. Any excess of the cost of acquisition 
over the fair values of the identifiable net assets (net fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and 
contingent liabilities) acquired is recognised as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair 
values of the identifiable net assets acquired, the discount on acquisition is recognised directly in the 
income statement in the year of acquisition.       
   
Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses.         
 
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired is allocated, from the acquisition date, to 
each of the Company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the 
combination.

The cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and 
whenever there is an indication that the cash-generating unit may be impaired, by comparing the 
carrying amount of the cash-generating unit, including the allocated goodwill, with the recoverable 
amount of the cash-generating unit. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is 
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. Impairment 
losses recognised for goodwill are not reversed in subsequent periods.    
      
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that cash-
generating unit is disposed off, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed off is included in 
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. 
Goodwill disposed off in this circumstance is measured based on the relative fair values of the 
operations disposed and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

          (h) Assets Held For Sale

( i )  Business Combination And Goodwill
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

          (j) Impairment Of Non-financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired.  If any such indication exists, or when an annual impairment assessment for an asset is 
required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in 
use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there 
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units (“CGU”)).

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset 
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where the carrying 
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is written down to its recoverable 
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of a CGU or groups of CGUs are allocated first to 
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to those units or groups of units and then, to 
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or groups of units on a pro-rata basis.
          
Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement except for assets that are previously 
revalued and where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case the 
impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of the previous revaluation.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously 
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. A previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the 
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the 
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss 
been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in the income statement unless the asset 
is measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. 
Impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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Ordinary Share Capital 
         
The Company has issued ordinary shares that are classified as equity. Incremental external costs that 
are directly attributable to the issue of these shares are recognised in equity, net of tax.

Dividend On Ordinary Share Capital

    
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity when they are 
approved by the Company’s shareholder. Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are 
paid.

Dividends for the year that are approved after the balance sheet date are dealt with as an event after 
the balance sheet date.

The Company currently only issues contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. 

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. An insurance 
contract is a contract under which the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance 
risk from another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified 
uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, 
the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing claims paid with 
claims payable if the insured event did not occur.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for 
the remainder of its life-time, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless 
all rights and obligations are extinguished or expired.

When insurance contracts contain both a financial risk component and a significant insurance risk 
component and the cash flows from the two components are distinct and can be measured reliably, 
the underlying amounts are unbundled. Any premiums relating to the insurance risk component are 
accounted for on the same bases as insurance contracts and the remaining element is accounted 
for as a deposit through the balance sheet similar to investment contracts.

(l)  Product Classification

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

          (k) Equity Instruments
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The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all its businesses. Reinsurance 
assets represent amounts recoverable from reinsurers for insurance contract liabilities which have yet 
to be settled at the reporting date. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner 
consistent with the outstanding claims provisions or settled claims associated with the reinsurer’s 
policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contracts.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from the obligations to policyholders. 
Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently when an 
indication of impairment arises during the reporting period. Impairment occurs when there is objective 
evidence as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance asset that 
the Company may not receive all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the contract and 
the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from the 
reinsurer. The impairment loss is recorded in the income statement.

The Company also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business when applicable.

Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognised as revenue or expenses in the same 
manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account the 
product classification of the reinsured business. 

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or 
expired when the contract is transferred to another party.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

          (m) Reinsurance
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The general insurance underwriting results are determined for each class of business after taking 
into account reinsurances, commissions, premium liabilities and claim liabilities.

Gross Premiums         
 
Gross premiums are recognised in a financial period in respect of risks assumed during that particular 
financial period.

Reinsurance Premiums

         
Inwards facultative reinsurance premiums are recognised in the financial period in respect of the 
facultative risks assumed during the particular financial period, as in the case of direct policies, 
following the individual risks’ inception dates.

Inwards proportional treaty reinsurance premium is recognised on the basis of periodic advices 
received from cedants given that the periodic advices reflect the individual underlying risks being 
incepted and reinsured at various inception dates of these risks and contractually accounted for.

Premium Liabilities

Premium liabilities represent the Company’s future obligations on insurance contracts as represented 
by premiums received for risks that have not yet expired. In determining premium liabilities at 
reporting date, the method that most accurately reflects the actual unearned premium is used, as 
described in Note 2.2(p)(ii).

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

          (n) General Insurance Underwriting Results
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

           (n) General Insurance Underwriting Results (cont’d.)

(o) Insurance Receivables

Insurance receivables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of 
the consideration receivable. Subsequent to initial recognition, insurance receivables are measured 
at amortised cost, using the effective yield method.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the 
carrying amount of the insurance receivable accordingly and recognises that impairment loss in the 
income statement through an allowance account. The Company gathers the objective evidence that 
an insurance receivable is impaired using the same process adopted for financial assets carried at 
amortised cost. The impairment loss is calculated under the same method used for these financial 
assets. These processes are described in Note 2.2(e).

Insurance receivables are derecognised when the derecognition criteria for financial assets, as 
described in Note 2.2(f), have been met.

Claim Liabilities

          
A liability for outstanding claim is recognised in respect of both direct insurance and inward 
reinsurance.

The amount of claim liabilities is the best estimate of the expenditure required together with related 
expenses less recoveries to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date.

Provision is also made for the cost of claims, together with related expenses, incurred but not 
reported at the balance sheet date, using a mathematical method of estimation.

Acquisition Costs

         
The gross costs of acquiring and renewing insurance policies and income derived from ceding 
reinsurance premiums are recognised as incurred and properly allocated to the periods in which it is 
probable they give rise to income.
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General insurance contract liabilities are recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums 
are charged. The valuation of general insurance contract liabilities is in accordance with the Risk-
Based Capital Framework for Insurers issued by BNM.

General insurance contract liabilities comprise claim liabilities and premium liabilities.

Premium liabilities is the higher of the aggregate of the Unearned Premium Reserves (“UPR”) for 
all lines of business and the best estimate value of the Unexpired Risk Reserves (“URR”) at the 
required risk margin for adverse deviation as required by the RBC Framework.

UPR represents the portion of net premiums of insurance policies written, less the related net 
acquisition costs, that remains unearned at the balance sheet date. UPR is computed with 
reference to the month of accounting for the premium reduced by the percentage of accounted 
gross direct business commissions to the corresponding premiums but not exceeding such 
limits as specified by BNM on the following basis:

(ii) Premium Liabilities

a) UPR

-

-

-

25% method for marine and aviation cargo, and transit business;     
   
1/24th method for all other classes of general business in respect of Malaysian policies; and

Non-annual policies are time apportioned over the period of the risks.

Claim liabilities are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at 
the balance sheet date, whether reported or not, together with related claims handling costs and 
reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries. Delays can be experienced in 
the notification and settlement of certain type of claims; therefore, the ultimate cost of these claims 
cannot be known with certainty at the balance sheet date. The liabilities are calculated at the 
reporting date using a range of standard actuarial claim projection techniques based on empirical 
data and current assumptions that may include a margin for adverse deviation as required by 
the RBC Framework. The liability is not discounted for the time value of money.  The liabilities are 
derecognised when the contract expires, is discharged or is cancelled.

(i) Claim Liabilities

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

          (p) General Insurance Contract Liabilities
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

          (p) General Insurance Contract Liabilities (cont’d.)

(ii) Premium Liabilities (cont!d.)

The best estimate value of URR is a prospective estimate of the expected future payments 
arising from future events insured under policies in force as at the end of the financial year and 
also includes allowance for expenses, including overheads and cost of reinsurance, expected 
to be incurred during the unexpired period in administering these policies and settling the 
relevant claims, and allows for expected future premium refunds.

b) URR

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must 
also be met before revenue is recognised. 

Interest Income

          
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Dividend Income         
 
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Rental Income

          
Rental is recognised on an accrual basis except where default in payment of rent has already 
occurred and rent due remains outstanding for over six months, in which case, recognition of rental 
income is suspended. Subsequent to suspension, income is recognised on a receipt basis until all 
arrears have been paid.
          

(q) Other Revenue Recognition
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(ii) Premium Liabilities (cont!d.) Fee And Commission Income

         
Commission income derived from reinsurers in the course of ceding of premiums to reinsurers are 
charged to income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

          (q) Other Revenue Recognition (cont’d.)

Income tax on the income statement for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax 
is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year and is 
measured using the tax rates that have been enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences at the balance 
sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial 
statements. In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences 
and deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses 
and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be 
utilised. Deferred tax is not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or negative 
goodwill or from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business 
combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in the income statement, except when it arises from a transaction which 
is recognised directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised directly in equity.

(r) Income Tax
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Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event 
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at 
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, 
the provision is reversed. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are 
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the 
liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as finance cost.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

          (s) Provisions

!"#$%&'($)*+(,(-%.         
 
Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in the 
year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Company. Short-term 
accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are recognised when services are 
rendered by employees that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences. Short-term 
non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised when the absences 
occur.

/(-,(0*1#,%$234%2#,*567,.

          
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Company pays fixed 
contributions into separate entities or funds and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay 
further contributions if any of the funds do not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits 
relating to employee services in the current and preceding financial years. Such contributions are 
recognised as an expense in the income statement as incurred. As required by law, the Company 
makes such contributions to the Employees Provident Fund (“EPF”).

(t) Employee Benefits
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The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia which is also the functional currency of 
the Company.
        
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate prevailing at 
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are re-
translated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences 
are taken to the income statement.
   
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are not 
subsequently restated. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. All foreign 
exchange differences are taken to income statement, except for differences relating to items where 
gains or losses are recognised directly in equity, in which case, the gain or loss is recognised net of 
the exchange component in equity.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

          (u) Foreign Currencies

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions with original 
maturities of three months or less. It excludes deposits which are held for investment purposes.

(v) Cash And Cash Equivalents

(w) Leases

A lease is recognised as a finance lease if it transfers substantially to the Company all the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership. Leases of land and buildings are classified as operating or 
finance leases in the same way as leases of other assets and the land and buildings elements of 
a lease of land and buildings are considered separately for the purposes of lease classification. All 
leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards are classified as operating leases.

829*167..2-:7%2#,*
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60 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

          (w) Leases (cont’d.)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the term 
of the relevant lease.

In the case of a lease of land and buildings, the minimum lease payments or the up-front 
payments made are allocated, whenever necessary, between the land and the buildings elements 
in proportion to the relative fair values for leasehold interests in the land element and buildings 
element of the lease at the inception of the lease. The up-front payment represents prepaid lease 
payments and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Long term prepaid lease 
payments refer to leases with an unexpired period of fifty years or more.

(iii) Operating Leases - The Company As Lessee 

(ii) Finance Leases - The Company As Lessee

Useful lives of all leasehold buildings are shorter than the lease term of the leasehold land on 
which the buildings are located.  As such, all risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of 
such assets would be deemed to have been substantially transferred to the Company at the end 
of their useful lives.  All leasehold buildings are therefore classified as being held under finance 
leases in the financial statements. 

Buildings held under finance leases are recognised as assets in the Balance Sheet of the 
Company and measured in accordance with MFRS 116 Property, Plant and Equipment and 
MFRS 140 Investment Properties.

The depreciation policy for leased assets is in accordance with that for depreciable property and 
equipment as described in Note 2.2(a) and investment properties as described in Note 2.2(g).

Assets leased out under operating leases are presented on the balance sheet according to the 
nature of the assets. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis 
over the term of the relevant lease (Note 2.2(q)).  Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and 
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised 
on a straight-line basis on the lease term.

(iv) Operating Leases - The Company As Lessor
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61NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.3 Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective

As at the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards, Amendments 
to Standards and IC Interpretations have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board 
(“MASB”) but are not yet effective and have not been adopted by the Company.

Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 12 and MFRS 127 - Investment Entities

Amendments to MFRS 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and

  Financial Liabilities         

Amendments to MFRS 136 - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

Amendments to MFRS 139 - Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting IC 

Interpretation 21 - Levies

Effective For Financial Periods Beginning On Or After 1 July 2014

Amendments to MFRS 119*&*;)<6#=((*+(,(-%.>*/(-,(0*+(,(-%*567,.*&*;)<6#=((*1#,%$234%2#,.

Amendments to MFRS 2 - Share Based Payment (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle)

Amendments to MFRS 3 - Business Combinations (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle)

Amendments to MFRS 3 - Business Combinations (Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle)

Amendments to MFRS 8 - Operating Segments (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle)  

Amendments to MFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement (Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle)

Amendments to MFRS 116 - Property, Plant and Equipment (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle) 

Amendments to MFRS 124 - Related Party Disclosures (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle)

Amendments to MFRS 138 - Intangible Assets (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle)

Amendments to MFRS 140 - Investment Property (Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle)

Effective For Financial Periods Beginning On Or After 1 January 2014
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MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued by IASB in November 2009)
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued by IASB in October 2010)
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Hedge Accounting and amendments to MFRS 9, MFRS 7 and MFRS
  139

The directors expect that the adoption of the above Standards and Amendments will have no material 
impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application except as discussed below:

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

     2.3 Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective (cont’d.)

            !""#$%&'#()*%#(+,(-#(.//,0/$#1(-2(3.4-

MFRS 9 reflects the first phase of work on the replacement of MFRS 139 and applies to classification 
and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in MFRS 139. The standard 
was initially effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, but Amendments to 
MFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of MFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures, issued in March 2012, 
moved the mandatory effective date to 1 January 2015. Subsequently, on 14 February 2014, it was 
announced that the new effective date will be decided when the project is closer to completion. The 
adoption of the first phase of MFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of 
the Company’s financial assets, but will not have an impact on classification and measurements of 
the Company’s financial liabilities. The Company will quantify the effect in conjunction with the other 
phases, when the final standard including all phases is issued.

The amendments to MFRS 136 introduces new disclosures requirements when impairment losses 
are recognised, or reversed, in relation to an asset or a group of assets. The adoption of this 
Amendment will require more extensive disclosures on recoverable amounts including the basis 
by which recoverable amounts have been determined but will not have any financial impact on the 
Company.

(a) MFRS 9 Financial Instruments

(b) Amendments to MFRS 136 Recoverable Amount Disclosures For Non-Financial Assets
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.4 Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates And Assumptions

          (a) Critical Judgments Made In Applying Accounting Policies

The following are judgments made by management in the process of applying the Company’s 
accounting policies that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences 
can be utilised. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred 
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits 
together with future tax planning strategies.

The Company is subject to income taxes in Malaysia. Significant judgment is required in 
determining the allowances and deductibility of certain expenses during the estimation of the 
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate 
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Company recognises 
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be 
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially 
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period 
in which the determination is made.

Significant judgment is required to assess impairment for AFS financial assets. The Company 
evaluates the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than cost, the 
financial health and near term business outlook for the investee, including but not limited to 
factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and operational and 
financial cash flow.

These factors are inherently subjective and management is required to exercise judgment to 
determine if an AFS financial asset is impaired as well as the estimation of the recoverable 
value of AFS financial assets against which the carrying value is compared to determine the 
impairment loss to be recognised in the financial statements.

(i) Deferred Tax Assets

(ii) Income Taxes

82229*?)<72$)(,%*#@*AB!*-,7,:276*7..(%.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.4 Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates And Assumptions (cont’d.)

          (a) Critical Judgments Made In Applying Accounting Policies (cont’d.)

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at 
the balance sheet date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(b) Key Sources Of Estimation Uncertainty And Assumptions

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a 
financial asset is impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the 
Company complies with BNM’s Guidelines on Financial Reporting for Insurers (BNM/RH/GL 
003-28). In line with the requirements of the Guidelines, where receivables that are individually 
assessed for impairment is past due for more than 90 days or 3 months, objective evidence 
of impairment is deemed to exist. Accordingly, management will assess such receivables to 
determine if an impairment event has occurred. Other factors considered by the Company are 
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant 
delay in payments.

Where evidence exists that a receivable is impaired, the Company will recognised the impairment 
loss in the income statement.

The principal uncertainty in the Company’s general insurance business arises from the technical 
provisions which include premium and claim liabilities. Premium liabilities are recorded as the 
higher of UPR or URR while claim liabilities are mainly comprise of provision for outstanding 
claims notified and outstanding claims incurred but not reported.

Generally, claim liabilities are determined based upon previous claims experience, existing 
knowledge of events, the terms and conditions of the relevant policies and interpretation 
of circumstances. Particularly relevant is past experience with similar cases, historical claims 
development trends, legislative changes, judicial decisions and economic conditions.  It is certain 
that actual future premium and claim liabilities will not exactly develop as projected and may 
vary from the Company’s projections.        
 
         

(iv) Impairment Of Receivables

(i) Valuation Of General Insurance Contract Liabilities
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65NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D.)

    2.4 Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates And Assumptions (cont’d.)
        
          (b) Key Sources Of Estimation Uncertainty And Assumptions (cont’d.) 

The estimates of premium and claim liabilities are therefore sensitive to various factors and 
uncertainties. The establishment of technical provisions is an inherently uncertain process and, 
as a consequence of this uncertainty, the eventual settlement of premium and claim liabilities 
may vary from the initial estimates.

There may be significant reporting lags between the occurrence of an insured event and the time 
it is actually reported to the Company. Following the identification and notification of an insured 
loss, there may still be uncertainty as to the magnitude of the claim.  There are many factors 
that will determine the level of uncertainty such as inflation, inconsistent judicial interpretations, 
legislative changes and claims handling procedures.

At each reporting date, the estimates of premium and claim liabilities are re-assessed for 
adequacy by an appointed actuary and changes will be reflected as adjustments to these 
liabilities. The appointment of the actuary is approved by BNM.

The Company has recognised pipeline premium amounting to approximately RM9,255,124 
during the current financial year (2012: RM9,796,276). The estimation of pipeline premiums 
made by management is based on average actual pipeline premium booked in during the year. 
As estimations are inherently uncertain, actual premium may differ from the estimated premiums. 
Management revises its estimates of pipeline premium based on average monthly trends for 
policy issuance turnaround time.

The Company assesses goodwill annually to determine if any impairment exists by measuring 
the recoverable amount of the goodwill based on the value-in-use method, which requires the 
use of estimates of cash flow projections, growth rates and discount rates. Changes to the 
assumptions used by management, particularly the discount rate and the terminal value, may 
affect the results of the impairment assessment. The assumptions applied to estimate the value-
in-use computations are as described in Note 5 to the financial statements.

(i)  Valuation Of General Insurance Contract Liabilities (cont!d.)

(ii)  Pipeline Premium

(iii) Impairment Of Goodwill
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3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
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Included in the cost of property and equipment of the Company are the costs of fully depreciated assets 
which are still in use amounting to RM6,884,576 (2012: RM6,857,521).
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4. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES      
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5. GOODWILL
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The goodwill above arose from the acquisition of certain assets and liabilities of the general insurance 
business of Tahan Insurance Malaysia Berhad (now known as Tahan Malaysia Berhad) on 1 January 2011 
(“Tahan”).

Goodwill is allocated to the Company’s Cash Generating Unit (“CGU”) which is expected to benefit from 
the synergies of the acquisition. The recoverable amount of the CGU is assessed based on its value-in-use 
and compared to the carrying value of the CGU to determine whether any impairment exists. Impairment 
is recognised in the income statement if the carrying amount of the CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Goodwill is allocated to the Company’s business as a whole, which is defined as a single CGU.

The value-in-use calculations apply discounted cash flow projections prepared and approved by 
management, covering a five-year period.         
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5. GOODWILL (CONT’D.)     

The expected growth rate of the company is on the average of 18% per annum (2012: 17%).

The discount rate applied is the internal weighted average cost of capital of the Company at the time of 
the assessment, which is estimated to be 10.03% per annum (2012: 9.77%) (pre-tax discount rate of 
11.56% per annum (2012: 11.15%)); and

Terminal value cash flow growth rate of 4.3% (2012: 5%), which is consistent with the Gross Domestic 
Product rate.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The management of the Company believes that reasonably possible changes in any of the above key 
assumptions would not cause the carrying value of the CGU to exceed its recoverable amount. Accordingly, 
there is no evidence of impairment of goodwill as at the financial year-end.

The other key assumptions for the computation of value-in-use are as follows:

The Company’s investments are summarised by categories as follows:

6. INVESTMENTS
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6. INVESTMENTS (CONT’D.) 
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The following investments mature after 12 months:

(a) LAR 
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The carrying value of the fixed and call deposits approximate their fair values due to the relatively short 
term maturities.

The carrying value of the mortgage loans, secured loans and other loans are reasonable approximations 
of fair values due to the insignificant impact of discounting. 
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6. INVESTMENTS (CONT’D.) 

Financial instruments with embedded derivatives primarily comprise of warrants and structured deposits 
which are held for investment purposes. In accordance with MFRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition 

and Measurement, these have been designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition. 
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(b) AFS Financial Assets

(c) FVTPL
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6. INVESTMENTS (CONT’D.) 
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7. REINSURANCE ASSETS

8. INSURANCE RECEIVABLES 

9. OTHER RECEIVABLES
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The carrying amounts of other receivables (not including deposits and prepayments) approximate fair values 
due to the relatively short-term maturity of these balances.

Included in the above is the Company’s cash contribution of RM17,989,134 made to MMIP, following cash 
calls made by the Pool during the current financial year. The cash contributions were made in respect of the 
Company’s share of MMIP’s accumulated losses up to 31 December 2012.     
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10. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
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As at 31 December 2013, the Company has completed the sale of its remaining three investment properties 
which were acquired from Tahan.
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11. SHARE CAPITAL
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The Company may distribute dividends out of its entire retained earnings as at 31 December 2013 and 31 
December 2012 under the single tier system.

12. RETAINED EARNINGS
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14. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) / LIABILITIES 
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same tax authority.

The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities and assets during the financial year prior to 
offsetting are as follows:

Deferred Tax Liabilities:

(<;4=

>?0

(<;4<

>?0

((DHFDMK(

(SDHFDMKT

(C(

(U

((KFNKEFGMN(

SHNJFKDHT

(SIFJJNFHEMT0

<985<=9

0L+(A
F+-'#0/J0

(1F#"$C#1$"0
IA/I#A$(#"

>?

00000

R1F#"$C#1$"
>?



Overseas Assurance Corporation (Malaysia) Berhad (102249-P)
(A member of Great Eastern Holdings Limited)

Annual Report 2013 Building Confidence & Trust
!"#!$

76 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) / LIABILITIES (CONT’D.)

      Deferred Tax Liabilities: (cont’d.)
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* In accordance with the P.U(A) 419 Income Tax (Deduction for Contribution by Licensed Insurers to the 
Malaysian Motor Insurance Pool) Rules 2012, cash contributions made to MMIP via cash calls is allowed 
for as a deduction in the year when such cash is paid to the MMIP. The Company has recognised this 
benefit as a deferred tax asset in the current year.
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      Deferred Tax Assets: 
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16. INSURANCE PAYABLES

15. DEPOSITS FROM REINSURERS
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The carrying amount of deposits from reinsurers approximates fair value at the balance sheet date.

All deposits are repayable within one year.    

The carrying amounts disclosed above approximate fair value at the balance sheet date.

All amounts are payable within one year.
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17. OTHER PAYABLES

The carrying amounts disclosed above approximate fair values at the balance sheet date.

All amounts are payable within one year.

The amounts due to related companies are trade in nature, unsecured, interest free and are repayable on 
demand.           
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18. NET EARNED PREMIUMS
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19. INVESTMENT INCOME
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20. REALISED GAINS  
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21. FAIR VALUE LOSSES

22. OTHER OPERATING REVENUE / (EXPENSES)
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23. NET CLAIMS  

24. MANAGEMENT EXPENSES
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24. MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CONT’D.)

      (a) Employee Benefits Expense

      (b) Directors’ Remuneration
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Included in employee benefits expense is CEO’s remuneration of RM715,128 (2012: RM841,973) as 
detailed in Note 24(c).

The details of remuneration receivable by Directors during the year are as follows:

The Directors’ fees are subject to the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee to the Board for 
endorsement and approval by the shareholder at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company.

The number of Directors whose total remuneration received from the Company during the year that fell 
within the following bands is analysed below:
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24. MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CONT’D.)

      (c) CEO’s Remuneration

25. TAXATION
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The details of remuneration received by the CEO during the year are as follows:

The income tax is based on the tax rate of 25% (2012: 25%) of the estimated assessable profit for the 
financial year.

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before taxation at the statutory income tax rate 
to income tax expenses at the effective income tax rate is as follows:
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26. EARNINGS PER SHARE

27. DIVIDENDS
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Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the financial year attributable to ordinary equity 
holders of the Company by the number of Ordinary Shares in issue during the financial year.   
         

The amounts of dividend paid by the Company as at 31 December 2013 were as follows:

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares as at the reporting date.  There have been no other 
transactions involving ordinary shares between the reporting date and the date of completion of the 
financial statements.

At the forthcoming AGM of the Company, a final single tier dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 
December 2013 of RM0.30 per ordinary share on 100,000,000 ordinary shares, amounting to a dividend 
payable of RM30,000,000 will be proposed for shareholder’s approval.

The financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, 
if approved by the shareholder, will be accounted for in the shareholder’s equity as appropriation of retained 
earnings in the next financial year ending 31 December 2014.
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28. NET CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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The Company classifies the cash flows from the acquisition and disposal of financial assets as operating 
cash flows, as the purchases are funded from cash flows associated with the origination of insurance 
contracts, net of the cash flows for payments of claims incurred for insurance contracts, which are classfied 
under operating activities.
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29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
      
      (a) The Company As Lessee 

The capital commitments of the Company as at the financial year-end are as follows:
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Future Minimum Rental Payments:

The Company has entered into a lease agreement for rental of equipment, software and services and 
office premises.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under operating lease contracted for as at the reporting 
date but not recognised as liabilities are as follows:



Overseas Assurance Corporation (Malaysia) Berhad (102249-P)
(A member of Great Eastern Holdings Limited)

Annual Report 2013 Building Confidence & Trust
!"#!$

86 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
      
      (a) Related Party Transactions And Balances 
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In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Company had the fol-
lowing transactions and balances with related parties during and at the end of the financial year:

Significant Transactions With Related Parties During The Year:
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31. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT’D.)
      
      (a) Related Party Transactions And Balances (cont’d.)
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Significant Transactions With Related Parties During The Year (cont’d.):
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The related companies disclosed above are companies within the OCBC group. Notes on transactions 
with related parties:

The sale and purchase of insurance policies to related companies are made according to normal 
market prices and at terms and conditions no more favourable than those to other customers and 
employees.

Rental of property from related parties are made according to normal market prices, terms and 
conditions.

Payment of service charges to related parties are made according to normal market prices.

The interest income arose mainly from investment in fixed deposits and repurchase agreements 
which are made according to prevailing market rates, terms and conditions. 

General terms for balances with related companies are disclosed in Note 17.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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31. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT’D.)
      
      (b) Compensation Of Key Management Personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel during the year was as follows:

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing 
and controlling the activities of the Company. The key management personnel of the Company includes 
the Directors, CEO and Executive Vice Presidents. 
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32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Managing risk is an integral part of the Company’s core business. As stated in the Enterprise Risk 
Management (“ERM”) Framework, the Company shall:

The Risk Management Department spearheads the development and implementation of the ERM 
Framework for the Company.

The Board Risk Committee (“BRC”), constituted in 2003, provides the oversight on the risk management 
initiatives. Detailed risk management and oversight activities are undertaken by the following Management 
Committees comprising the CEO and key Senior Management Executives:

The SMT is responsible for providing leadership, direction and oversight with regards to all matters of the 
Company. The SMT is also responsible for ensuring compliance and alignment with Group Governance 
and Oversight Framework, i.e. Group standards and guidelines.

The ALC is responsible for assisting the SMT in balance sheet management. Specifically, the ALC reviews 
and formulates technical frameworks, policies and methodology relating to balance sheet management. 
The ALC is also responsible for ensuring compliance and alignment with Group Governance and Oversight 
Framework, i.e. Group standards and guidelines.

The PDC oversees the product development and launch process. In addition, the PDC regularly reviews 
and monitors the performance of new and existing products.

The ITSC is responsible for the oversight of technology and information risks and any relevant regulatory 
and compliance risks relating to technology and information risks within the Company.

Governance Framework 
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32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Insurers have to comply with the Financial Services Act 2013 (“FSA”) which came into force on 30 June 
2013, including guidelines on investment limits.

As the FSA effectively serves to replace the Insurance Act (“IA”)1996, the enforcement of the FSA has a 
profound impact on the way the Company operates and it raises challenges to business departments to 
put the house in order for compliance with the new regulatory requirements. In comparison with IA 1996, 
FSA provides greater sense of regulatory control and consumer protection as well as endowing BNM with 
wide powers to intervene with a financial institution’s business or operations to manage risk and ensure 
good governance. Insurers are still subjected to certain requirements under IA while transitioning to FSA.

Notwithstanding the high impact of FSA on the Company’s overall operations and business conduct, the 
Company had started its preparation works early in February 2013 and the actions towards full compliance 
with the applicable provisions of the FSA are well underway. The Company continues to engage with BNM, 
particularly in areas of operational difficulty, with the objective of informing BNM on the challenges faced 
as well as to gain clarity on the requirements through the standards and regulations to be issued by BNM.

The responsibility for the formulation, establishment and approval of the Company’s investment policies 
rests with the Board. The Board exercises oversight on the investments to safeguard the interests of the 
policyholders and shareholder.

On 1 March 2013, Bank Negara Malaysia (“BNM”) issued a policy document on Risk Governance which 
sets out a framework of principles on risk governance to guide the Board and SMT in performing their risk 
oversight function. The principles in this document are foundation for and complement other guidelines 
and sound practices papers issued by BNM on specific risks. Collectively, they reflect BNM’s supervisory 
expectations with regards to the Company’s risk management framework and practices, and form the 
basis for supervisory assessments performed by the BNM.

Regulatory Framework

Governance Framework (cont’d.)
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32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)

The Company’s capital management policy is to create shareholder value, deliver sustainable returns to 
shareholder, maintain a strong capital position with sufficient buffer to meet policyholders’ obligations and 
regulatory requirements and make strategic investments for business growth. The Company has had no 
significant changes in the policies and processes relating to its capital structure during the year.

Under the Risk-Based Capital for Insurers (“RBC”) Framework, the insurer has to maintain a capital 
adequacy level that commensurate with its risk profiles. The Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Company 
remained well above the minimum capital requirement of 130% under the RBC Framework regulated by 
BNM.

The Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (“ICAAP”) Framework came into effect on 1 September 
2012. Under this Framework, the Company has to ensure adequate capital to meet its capital requirements 
on an ongoing basis. The key elements supporting the Framework include Board and Senior Management 
oversight, comprehensive risk assessment, individual target capital level and stress testing, sound capital 
management as well as ongoing monitoring, reporting and review.

Capital management and planning policies were further developed and refined under the Framework to 
outline the approaches and principles under which the Company’s capital will be monitored and managed, 
as well as the corrective actions to be implemented at various critical capital levels. In addition, a risk 
appetite statement was established to outline the Company’s capacity to take on risks to achieve its 
business objectives while managing the expectations of key stakeholders.

The following sections provide details regarding the Company’s exposure to the insurance and key financial 
risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks.

There has been no major change to the Company’s exposure to these insurance and key financial risks or 
the manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

Capital Management Framework



Overseas Assurance Corporation (Malaysia) Berhad (102249-P)
(A member of Great Eastern Holdings Limited)

Annual Report 2013 Building Confidence & Trust
!"#!$

92 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Insurance Risk 
      
The principal activity of the Company is to provide general insurance services for protection against the 
risks of property losses, casualty and third party liabilities, personal accident and medical claims.

The Company’s underwriting strategy is designed to ensure that these risks are well diversified in terms 
of type of risk and level of insured benefits.  This is largely achieved through diversification across industry 
sectors and geography, regular review of actual claims experience and product pricing, as well as detailed 
claims handling procedures.  Underwriting limits are also set in place to enforce appropriate risk selection 
criteria.  For example, the Company has the right not to renew individual policies, it can impose deductibles 
and it has the right to reject the payment of fraudulent claims.

Insurance risk comprises both actuarial and underwriting risks resulting from the pricing and acceptance of 
insurance contracts. The risks arise when actual claims experience is different from the assumptions used 
in setting the prices for products and establishing the technical provisions and liabilities for claims. Sources 
of assumptions affecting insurance risk include policy cancellations and policy claims.

The Company works closely with reinsurers to put in place a prudent underwriting policy to ensure 
appropriate risk classification and premium levels. The Company’s reinsurance management strategy and 
policy are reviewed annually by the ALC and BRC, and approved by the Board. Reinsurance structures are 
set based on the type of risk. Catastrophe reinsurance is procured to limit catastrophic losses.

Only foreign reinsurers meeting a minimum credit rating of S&P “A-“ or legally set up local reinsurers are 
considered when deciding on which reinsurers to reinsure the Company’s risk. The Company limits its risk 
to any one reinsurer by ceding different products to different reinsurers or to a panel of reinsurers.

The SMT reviews the trends and claims experience, as well as expenses to ensure that appropriate policies, 
guidelines and limits put in place to manage these risks remain adequate and appropriate.

Stress Testing (“ST”) is performed twice a year. The purpose of the ST is to test the solvency of the 
Shareholder’s Fund and General Insurance Fund under the various scenarios according to regulatory 
guidelines, simulating drastic changes in major parameters such as new business volume, investment 
environment, claims experience and operational loss.
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32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Insurance Risk (cont’d.)

Risks under general insurance policies usually cover a twelve-month duration. The risk inherent in general 
insurance contracts is reflected in the insurance contract liabilities which include the premium and claim 
liabilities, as set out under Note 13 of the financial statements. The premium liabilities comprise the higher 
of UPR or URR, while the claim liabilities comprise the loss reserves which include both provision for 
outstanding claims notified and outstanding claims incurred but not reported.

Table 32(A1): The Table below shows the concentration of premium liabilities by class of business:
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32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Insurance Risk (cont’d.)
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32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Insurance Risk (cont’d.)

The general insurance contract liabilities are determined based on previous claims experience, existing 
knowledge of events, the terms and conditions of the relevant policies and interpretation of circumstances. 
Of particular relevance is past experience with similar cases, historical claims development trends, legislative 
changes, judicial decisions, economic conditions and claims handling procedures. The estimates of the 
general insurance contract liabilities are therefore sensitive to various factors and uncertainties. The actual 
future premium and claim liabilities will not develop exactly as projected and may vary from initial estimates.

Insurance risk of general insurance contracts is mitigated by emphasising diversification across a large 
portfolio of insurance contracts. The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation 
of underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type of risk and 
level of insured benefits. This is largely achieved through diversification across industry sectors. Further, 
strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of claims handling 
procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are all policies and procedures 
put in place to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of 
actively managing and prompt pursuing of claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future 
developments that can negatively impact the Company.

The Company has also limited its exposure by imposing maximum claim amounts on certain contracts 
as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements in order to limit exposure to catastrophic events, e.g. 
hurricanes, earthquakes and flood damages.

The sensitivity analysis below shows the impact of changes in key assumptions on gross and net liabilities, 
profit before taxation and equity.
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32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)

      Insurance Risk (cont’d.)

Table 32(A3): The table below shows the insurance risk sensitivity analysis:

0 0
GE+1N#"

(10F+A(+,-#

=40V#S#C,#A0<;4=

R1SA#+"#0[0PV#SA#+"#QT( (

>5)./(5.)8.5.&.%2

!"%/.-/(5.)8.5.&.%2

(

!6@9(/)"B.*

A%5%7&%+(5#22(")&.#(S:#"(5)&%2&('%)"T( (

(

( (

>5)./2(=)*+5.*B(%;$%*2%2

eIEc

CIEc

eIEc

CIEc

eIEc

CIEc

eIEc

CIEc

eIEc

CIEc

(NLFGLH(

(SNLFGLHT

(KIFKGL(

(SKIFKGLT

(DFELG(

(SJNDT

(LDFNMN(

(SDNFNKHT

(IJJ(

(SIJJT

(HIFDIG(

(SHIFDIGT

(IIFNMM(

(SIIFNMMT

(IFMMJ(

(SLLET

(MHFLIG(

(SDMFMGDT

(NFKIE(

(SIJJT

(SHIFDIGT

(HIFDIG(

(SIIFNMMT

(IIFNMM(

(SIFMMJT

(LLE(

(SMHFLIGT

(DMFMGD(

(SNFKIET

(IJJ(

(SKDFMGNT

(KDFMGN(

(SDNFGGDT

(DNFGGD(

(SDFGDJT

(MLJ(

(SHDFEHLT

(DDFNGK(

(SHFLHET

(IDN(

0RCI+S$0
0/10IA/J($0
0,#J/A#0

00$+H+$(/10
0>?c;;;00

0RCI+S$00
0/10#&'($)a0

0>?c;;;0

0RCI+S$0
0/10NA/""0
0-(+,(-($(#"0
0>?c;;;0

000000RCI+S$0
0/101#$0

0-(+,(-($(#"0
0>?c;;;0



Overseas Assurance Corporation (Malaysia) Berhad (102249-P)
(A member of Great Eastern Holdings Limited)

Annual Report 2013Building Confidence & Trust
!"#!$

97NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)

      Insurance Risk (cont’d.)

Table 32(A3): The table below shows the insurance risk sensitivity analysis: (cont’d.)
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The method used for deriving sensitivity information and significant assumption did not change from the 
previous year.  However, the loss ratio assumption has been refined to better reflect the nature of the non-
life insurance business. Comparative figures have been revised accordingly.
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32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)

      Market And Credit Risks

Market risk arises when the market value of assets do not move consistently as the financial markets 
change.  Changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices and alternative investment prices 
can impact present and future investment earnings of the insurance operations as well as shareholder’s 
equity.

The Company is exposed to market risk in the Shareholder’s Fund and the General Insurance Fund. The 
ALC actively manages market risk through monitoring of the investment policy, asset allocation, portfolio 
construction and risk measurement as well as approving hedging strategies. Investment limits monitoring 
is in place at various levels to ensure that all investment activities are aligned with the Company’s risk 
management principles and philosophies. Compliance with established financial risk limits forms an integral 
part of the risk governance and financial reporting framework. Management of market risks resulting from 
changes in interest rates and currency exchange rates, volatility in equity price, as well as other risks like 
credit and liquidity risks are briefly described as follows:

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk through investments in fixed income instruments in both 
the Shareholder’s Fund and the General Insurance Fund. Since the Shareholder’s Fund and General 
Insurance Fund have exposure to investments in fixed income instruments, it will incur an economic loss 
when interest rates rise.

Investments denominated in foreign currencies are limited to 10% of individual funds regardless of 
country, subject to the foreign investments being in jurisdictions with sovereign ratings at least equivalent 
to that of Malaysia, as prescribed by the regulator. The Company does not have any direct exposure to 
foreign currency risk.

The table below summarises the assets and liabilities position as at the reporting date, which are all in 
Ringgit Malaysia.

(i)  Interest Rate Risk
 

(ii) Foreign Currency Risk
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Table 32(B1): The table below shows the Company’s financial / insurance assets and liabilities by 
           major currencies:
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32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)
      
      Market And Credit Risk (cont’d.)

      (ii)  Foreign Currency Risk (cont’d.)
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32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)
      
      Market And Credit Risk (cont’d.)

      (ii)  Foreign Currency Risk (cont’d.)

Table 32(B1): The table below shows the Company’s financial / insurance assets and liabilities by 
           major currencies (cont’d.):
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There was no foreign exchange exposure for the Company at the end of the current and previous 
financial years.
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32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)

      Market And Credit Risk (cont’d.)

Exposure to equity price risk exists in both assets and liabilities. Asset exposure exists through direct 
equity investment, where the Company through its investments in the Shareholder’s Fund and General 
Insurance Fund, bears all or most of the volatility in returns and investment performance risk. A robust 
monitoring process is in place to manage equity risk by activating appropriate risk management 
strategies to limit the downside risk at certain predetermined levels. Limits are set for single security 
holdings as a percentage of equity holdings.

Exposure to credit spread risk exists in the Company’s investments in bonds. Credit spread is the 
difference between the corporate yields against risk-free rate of the same tenure. When spreads widen, 
it generally implies that the market is factoring more risk of default on the bonds. A widening in credit 
spreads will result in a fall in values of the Company’s bond portfolio.     
      
           

           
The Company is exposed to alternative investment risk through the investments in real estate. Due 
to the special nature of this risk, every property deal is reviewed by the BRC regardless of its value, 
but subject to the approval by the Board. The ALC assists in deliberating matters relating to property, 
including real estate guidelines, risk management, performance, expenditure, operations and facilities 
management.           
           
           
            
 
The Company does not have any direct exposure to commodity risk.

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

 Equity Price Risk

 Credit Spread Risk

 Alternative Investment Risk

 Commodity Risk
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32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)

      Market And Credit Risk (cont’d.)

Cash flow and liquidity risk arises when a company is unable to meet its obligations associated with 
financial instruments when required to do so. This typically happens when the investments in the 
portfolio are illiquid. Demands for funds can usually be met through ongoing normal operations, 
premiums received, sale of assets or borrowings. Unexpected demands for liquidity may be triggered 
by negative publicity, deterioration of the economy, reports of problems in other companies in the 
same or similar lines of business, unanticipated policy claims, or other unexpected cash demands from 
policyholders.

Expected liquidity demands are managed through a combination of treasury, investment and asset-
liability management practices, which are monitored on an ongoing basis. Actual and projected cash 
inflows and outflows are monitored and a reasonable amount of assets are kept in liquid instruments 
at all times.

The Company is exposed to liquidity risk from its insurance contract liabilities when actual claims 
development deviates from estimated claim liabilities. This is mitigated to some extent through the 
Company’s periodic liability adequacy tests.

(vii) Cash Flow And Liquidity Risk
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Table 32(C2): The following table shows the current / non current classification of assets and liabilities:

32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)
      
      Market And Credit Risk (cont’d.)

      (vii)  Cash Flow And Liquidity Risk (cont’d.)
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* Expected utilisation or settlement within 12 months from the Balance Sheet date.
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Table 32(C2): The following table shows the current / non current classification of assets and liabilities 
           (cont’d.):

32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)
      
      Market And Credit Risk (cont’d.)

      (vii)  Cash Flow And Liquidity Risk (cont’d.)
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0=;6588<5684

* Expected utilisation or settlement within 12 months from the Balance Sheet date.
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32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)

      Market And Credit Risk (cont’d.)

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause financial loss to the other party 
by failing to discharge an obligation.  The Company is exposed to credit risk through (i) investment 
in cash, deposits and bonds, (ii) corporate lending activities and (iii) exposure to counterparty’s credit 
in derivative transactions and reinsurance contracts. For all three types of exposures, financial loss 
may materialise as a result of credit default by the borrower or counterparty. For investment in bonds, 
financial loss may materialise as a result of the widening credit spread or downgrade of credit rating.

The task of evaluating and monitoring credit risk is undertaken by the Credit Risk Committee (“CRC”), 
which in turn reports to the ALC. The Company has internal limits by issuer or counterparty and by 
credit ratings. These limits are actively monitored to manage the credit and concentration risk. These 
limits are reviewed on a regular basis. The creditworthiness of reinsurers and banks is assessed on an 
annual basis by reviewing their financial strength through published credit ratings and other publicly 
available financial information. (refer to Tables 32(D1), (D2) and (D3)).

Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have good rating and concentration of risk is avoided 
by following policy guidelines in respect of counterparties’ limits that are set each year.

Credit risk in respect of non-payment of premiums past the grace period specified in the BNM 
guidelines is being actively monitored according to internal guidelines.

(viii) Credit Risk
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32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)

      Market And Credit Risk (cont’d.)

      (viii) Credit Risk (cont’d.)

      Credit Exposure

Table 32(D1): The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of 
the balance sheet and items such as future commitments by funds.
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32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)

      Market And Credit Risk (cont’d.)

           
An important element of managing both market and credit risk is to actively manage concentration to 
specific issuers, counterparties, industry sectors, countries and currencies. Both internal and regulatory 
limits are put in place and monitored to manage this risk. These limits are reviewed on a regular basis 
by the ALC. The Company’s exposures are within the concentration limits set by the regulator. The 
Company actively manages its product mix to ensure that there is no significant concentration of credit 
risk.           
           
           
           

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key variables with all other 
variables held constant. The correlation of variables will have a significant effect in determining the 
ultimate fair value and/or amortised cost of financial assets, but to demonstrate the impact due to 
changes in variables, these variables have to be changed on an individual basis. It should be noted that 
the movements in these variables are non-linear.

The impact on net profit after tax represents the effect caused by changes in fair value of financial 
assets whose fair values are recorded in the income statement, and changes in valuation of insurance 
contract liabilities. The impact on equity represents the impact on net profit after taxation and the effect 
on changes in fair value of financial assets held in Shareholder’s Fund.

(ix)  Concentration Risk

(x)  Sensitivity Analysis On Financial Risks
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32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)

      Market And Credit Risk (cont’d.)

Operational risk is an event or action that may potentially impact partly or completely the achievement 
of the Company’s objectives resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes and systems, human 
factors or external events.

Compliance risk is any event or action that may potentially impact partly or completely the achievement 
of the Company’s objectives, via legal or regulatory sanctions or financial losses, as a result of its failure 
to comply with applicable laws, regulations, rules and standards, which are defined as:

- Laws, regulations and rules governing insurance business and financial activities undertaken by the 
  Company       
- Codes of practice promoted by industry associations
- Internal standards and guidelines

The day-to-day management of operational and compliance risk is effected through the maintenance of 
comprehensive internal controls, supported by an infrastructure of systems and procedures to monitor 
processes and transactions. The SMT reviews and monitors operational and compliance issues at 
its monthly meetings. The Internal Audit team reviews the systems of internal control to assess their 
effectiveness and continued relevance, and report at least quarterly to the Audit Committee. As an 
added measure, the risk appetite statement explicitly sets the Company’s tolerance level to financial 
loss arising from operational risk.

(xi) Operational And Compliance Risk

Fair Values Of Financial Assets And Liabilities

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial 
instruments by valuation techniques:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities    
           
Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are 
 observable, either directly or indirectly        
            
Level 3: Techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not 
 based on observable market data
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32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)

      Fair Values Of Financial Assets And Liabilities (cont’d.)

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value 
hierarchy:
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32. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D.)

Valuation Techniques

The following is a description of the method by which the fair values of financial instruments which are 
recorded at fair value are determined using valuation techniques. These incorporate the Company’s 
estimate of assumptions that a market participant would make when valuing the instruments:

AFS/FVTPL Financial Assets

The fair value of equity financial assets that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined 
by reference to quoted market bid prices for assets at the close of business on the balance sheet date.

For investment in quoted unit and real estate investment trusts, fair values are determined by reference to 
published net asset values.

For financial instruments where there is no active market such as unquoted fixed income securities, the 
estimated fair value are based on prices quoted by a bond pricing agency (“BPA”).
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33. REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

The capital structure of the Company as at 31 December 2013, as prescribed under the Risk Based 
Capital Framework is provided below:
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 1 January 2011, the Company had completed the acquisition of certain assets and liabilities of the 
general insurance business of Tahan Insurance Malaysia Berhad (now known as Tahan Malaysia Berhad) 
(“Tahan”) for a cash consideration of RM15,000,000, subject to adjustments to be made to the value of the 
acquired assets and liabilities upon finalisation of the acquisition.

In order to ascertain the adequacy of the claim liabilities of Tahan, especially the IBNR claims reserve as 
at 31 December 2010, both the Company and Tahan had appointed independent professional actuaries 
to provide an estimate of the total claim liabilities, using the same data. Upon completion of this exercise, 
different views arose on the value to be ascribed to the IBNR component of total claim liabilities. The 
Company’s independent professional actuary had estimated the value of the IBNR claims of Tahan as at 
31 December 2010 to be approximately RM46.5 million, which was higher than the value estimated by 
Tahan’s independent professional actuary, and which had been used as the basis for determining the value 
of the IBNR claim liabilities as at the acquisition date.

On 29 December 2011, via an appointed legal counsel, Tahan brought an action against the Company 
relating to the above differences in the estimated IBNR claims, by serving an originating summons in the 
High Court of Malaya in Kuala Lumpur, dated 21 December 2011. In the originating summons, Tahan had 
made a claim for approximately RM21.8 million plus interest of 8% against the Company.

On 22 February 2012, the High Court of Malaya in Kuala Lumpur had approved the Company’s application 
for a stay of proceedings and the Company commenced action through arbitration. Both parties had 
agreed to leave the appointment of the arbitrator to the Kuala Lumpur Regional Centre for Arbitration 
(“KLRCA”).

The appointment of the arbitrator was made by the KLRCA on 7 January 2013. However, upon the mutual 
request from both the Company and Tahan at a hearing at the KLRCA on 21 October 2013, the substantive 
hearings on the merit of reference has now been tentatively fixed from 23 to 25 April 2014 and 19 to 20 
May 2014 at KLRCA.

The final outcome of the now postponed arbitration proceedings may have an impact on the purchase 
consideration, goodwill and the value of certain assets and liabilities of Tahan which were acquired by the 
Company.
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